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MR. ODAM: Your Honor, we would like to 

call a witness out of sequence, Red Craig. 

MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me, I guess I am 

going to object. I didn't object on the 

authentication witnesses and I think 

rightfully so. I will object now to the 

calling of witnesses out of order and holding 

Mr. Couling in the wings, so to speak. It 

seems it now fractures the presentment of 

the direct, sothat the case gets broken 

down so the fuLl scope of the case is lost 

to me. 

THE MASTER: We interrupted -- the last 

witness on the stand was Mr. Kurtz and I 

don't see that the interruption here is going 

to bother that much, but if Mr. Couling were 

on the ~and, I would be more concerned, but 

yes, you may call Mr. Craig, Mr. Odam. 

WILLIAM A. CRAIG, 

having been duly sworn by the Court, testified 

upon his oath as follows: 
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1841 

BY MR. FLYSCH!: 
2 

3 Q Will ~ou state your full name, please, sir? 

4 A William A. :raig. 

5 Q Where do you live? 

6 A Alice, Texas. 

7 Q. By whom are you employed? 

8 A Plains Machinery. 

9 Q How long have you been employed by Plains Machinery 

10 A S1nce the~ took over from Jess McNeil, wh1ch they 

11 purchased about five years ago. 

12 
Q Five years ago they purchased Jess McNeil? 

13 A Yes. 

14 Q Did you work for Jess McNeil prior to the time 

15 
they were taken over? 

16 A Yes, sir, 

17 Q Approximately how long has that been? 

18 A From 1963 on. 

19 Q What has been the type of work you have done for 

20 Jess McNeil and Plains Machinery? 

21 A Field Mechanic work. 

22 Q And what sort of equipment do you do mechanical 

23 work on? 

u A All types of heavy equipment that we sell. 

~ Q Would that include a Caterpillar D-8 dozer? 
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A Yea, sir. 

2 Q Do you know Judge Carrillo? 

3 A Yes, sir. 
4 Q Is he present in the courtroom? 

5 A Yes, sir. 

6 Q Now, directing your attention -- let me rephrase 

7 that. 

8 Do you recall an incident where Judge Carrillo 

9 bought two D-8 tractors? 

10 A Y e s , s i r • 

11 Q Do )OU recall a pproxiL .. ' tely how long ago that was? 

12 A Three years. 
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MR. MITCHELL: We are going to object. 

The examiner has introduced a contract 

dated in 1972 for the purchase of these 

tractors and I introduced the antract for 

last year. I was afraid that question was 

going to be loaded, so we are going to 

object on the grounds it goes beyond the 

established record. 

THE MASTER: Overruled. 

MR. MITCHELL: It would be hearsay as 

to this witness when he thinks Judge Carrillo 

purchased them. 

THE MASTER: If you are suggesting his 
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testimony -- that Judge Carrillo bought these 

2 tractors and it means in the legal sense 

3 acquired title, I don't admit it for that 

4 purpose. I admit it in the sense that he 

5 had the use of or acquired it. 

6 MR. FLUSCHE: That is the purpose. 

7 Q (By Mr. Flusche:) Mr. Craig, in your capacity as 

8 field mechanic, have you had an opportunity to 

9 visit the Judge •s ranch known as the Borjas Ranch? 

10 A Yes, sir. 

11 Q Have you had occasion to go out to work on the 

12 D-8 tractors? 

13 A Yes, sir. 

14 Q Can you tell the Court when you first went out ther ? 

15 A soon after they were de livered, I made a couple of 

16 trips out there on small problems. 

u Q What sort of problems? 

18 A Electrical problems on one and a cable control 

19 unit on the other. 

~ Q Would that also be about three years ago or 

21 shortly after --

22 MR. MITCHELL: Objecti~n, leading. 

23 THE MASTER: Sustained. 

24 Q All right. Do you remember the sPrial numbers on 

25 those tractors? 
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A One or them is a 47~ or 472 and the other one was 

2 a 143, some thing like that. 

3 Q All right, sir. Have you had occasion to work on 

4 those Caterpillar tractors at other times? 

s A One other time on the same ranch, I helped his man 

6 do a final drive job. 

7 Q Approximately how long ago was that? 

8 A I believe it was something like last year sometime. 

g Q Have you had occasion to work on those C&terpillar 

10 tractors at any place other than the Borjas ranch? 

11 A Only at the Duval C~--nty shop. I disassembled 

12 
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an engine there. 

MR. FLUSCHE: I believe that is 

all I he ve. 

BY MR. MITCHELLL 

Q Red, my name f~ Arthur Mitchell end I rPorPsent 

JudcP Carrillo and I wtll 8sk ynu s few ftuestions. 

A All rip:ht. 

Q Mr. Crai~, you are, I beltPvP, emoloyPd as you 

testified on dirPct by Plain~ MachinPry Com~any? 
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A Y.-s, ~ir. 

Q Is that cnrrPct? 

A YPt~, "tr. 

Q !A Mr. -- what i9 htR name, Kurtz, ts he your 

A Yt"!ll, str. 

0 All ri.l!ht, I 11m l!nin~ to hand you what has been 

intrnducPd into PvidencP as two lt~!reement~. Thi!! 

is E-160 whtch shows a nurchltAP of two Cater-

nillars, a D -- you see the number on tt? 

0 It i.!'l -,6A470? 

Q And -,6A141? 

A Yes, si.r. 

Q Am I correct 1 

A YPs, r;tr. 

Q And t,at documPnt i.ndi.catt>A tl.W: tht>re was a 

contract waR December 14, 1972 1 

A Uh-huh. 

Q Now, I wfll ask you tn terms of havfnl! worked on 

the tractors, lookin~ at that document, does it 

servfl' your recollfl'ctioa that tho"'e are tht> two 

tractors that you worked on, that you testified 

to ln answer to auE>sti.ons nut to you by Mr. 
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A Y~!l, tlfr. 

Q Ar~ those t~e two tractors? 

A Y~s. sir. 

Q Okay. Now, let me ssk you, do -- by lookin~ at 

that date now, can you tell th~ Court ~bout when 

it waR that you -- let's take the fir~t time you 

•orked on the tractors in term~ of ttm~s. 

A It was soon after deliv~ry, !.don't know, it 

mt,ht have b~en two days, it mt~ht have be~n a 

week. 

Q All ri,ht. Without any nuestion tt would be in 

the early ~art of 72 -- I mean. the latter ~art 

of 72 or the early oart of 7,~ 

A Yes, Rir. 

Q I'm tryin, to ffx a mor~ s~~etfie ttme when you 

worked on them, Mr. Crai~. 

A WPll, I couldn't soeeify exact datE'S unless we 

have the work orders that w~ turned in on the job. 

Q All rt~ht, th~ next time you worked on them then 

aft~r you -- aft~r the two or three days would 

be that you mentioned, when would that have been? 

A Last year, the best of my knowled~e. I believe 

it was last year. 

Q All rt~ht. And did you rec~tll worki.n, on them 
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at any ot~er timP, oth~r t~an thP. two that you 

m~ntioned to us? 

A Only at Duval County ~hoo. 

Q All ri~ht, one th~t waR -- you worked on it, ft 

waA tore down, I believP. you tP.~tiffed? 

A Ye~, Air. 

0 Okay, and that waR one of them t~at is ~own tn 

A I believe it was ~erial number 470. 

Q It doe8n 1 t aonear to be in t~e same one that iR 

coverPrl by the a~reement, does it -- or does it? 

The one that was in the Duval sho~? 

A YPs. 

Q All ri~ht. 

A '6A470. 

Q All ri~ht. Now, were you oaid for --

MR. MITCHELL: Stri.ke that. 

Q Dtd you ever work on either of t~ese tractors 

on the Geor~e Parr ranch? 

A YPs, Rtr. 

Q All rt~ht, now, you knew Mr. P11rr durin~ hi.s 

lffettme, dt~ you not? 

A Yes, str. 

0 And can you tPll the court please when you worked 

on the POUinmPnt at the Parr ranch, and first of 
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all ~ive us th~ time about when that was. 

A Well, l~t·~ ~eP, orobably it was about six months 

ortor to tbP ttme Mr. Parr died. 

Q If he dted in Aoril of 1975, {t would be some• 

where alon~ the tail end of 1974~ 

A ri~ht. 

Q Okay, and where was the •• first ~f all, which 

Pauiom~nt, which of the dozer~. which of the 

opi.eces of f'Ciu-!oment can you, can you remember? 

A I believe it was the 143 was out at the ranch. 

Q And by out at the ranch, you mean out at the 

Parr r11neh? 

A YPs, sir. 

Q Did you work on the ·- on any one of those trac-

tors at any other ttme on the Parr ranch other 

than the one at thf' tail end of 1975? 

A No, sir. 

Q I m£tan 1974? 

A No, sf r. 

0 All right, df.d you work on them at any other 

0 1ace, other than the shoo, other than the Borja~ 

ranch or other than the Geor~e Parr ranch? 

A No, sir, 

Q All ri~ht, Mr. Crat~. wh~n you "'ockt!'d on th£t 

tractor within the last yPPr, which one did you 
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wnrk on, or ~o you rPc~ll? 

A W~ll, I workPd on both of thPm. 

Q On both nf th~m? 

A Yf>q. 

Q And whPrP wer~ thP.y the l~~t t~me you workPd on 

A The lA~t one I worked on was et Duval County shon. 

Q All r-f~ht. 

ranch. 

Q All rt~ht, and which ranch wa~ t~at, thf' Parr 

or the Borja~ rAnch? 

A The Atlef' Parr ranch. 

Q All r~~ht, the first visit that you made on thP 

of thP contrAct of ~alP and there was nn billin~ 

~one on that one? 

A Riv.ht. 

0 The one that you did twn or three days after? 

A Ri~,t. 

Q And thf'n the ~econd one, Mr. Crat~. do you know 

whethPr a bill was sent out on the second visit 

that you medP to the Borjas ranch to work on? 

A I am ~ure it we~. 
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3 Q All rt~ht, And whPn you workPd nn it at thP 

4 tl,p trl'lctor at tl,E' Parr ranch, do you recall 

5 whf'ther a bill was ~ent for that? 

6 A I a~~Umf' it was ~f'nt to Mr. Parr, becAUSE' thf' 

7 tract~r w8s ~nrkin~ on h4s ranch. 

8 this cnui~mf'nt -- Plains 

9 

10 nnt, Mr. Cra-tv? 

11 A Yf'!'l, str. 

12 0 Ancf as a m8tter of fact Itt vartnus time!ll, various 

13 neoolf' use tl,p enuinment tl,at you know of. As 

14 a mltttf'r of fact, havtn~ visited Pnutnment on 

15 vartnu~ oer~ons' ranches at 0 1Rcf's nf buslne~~. 

16 am I corrE-ct? 

17 A YP!'I, str, dtfferent olacf's. 

W Q And fsn 1 t it -- well, for exam~1P, ff you wpre 

19 workln, on enuinmf'nt on Jud~e Carrillo's ranch, 

20 the btll would be sent tn hi.m and he would oay 

21 for that? 

U A I a~sumE" that Is ri~ht, 

a 0 And ft wae -- and if it was wnrkin~ on Gpor~E' 

24 

25 

Parr's ranch and he had eaufoment and i.t brokf' 

down there and you worked nn it thf'rP, the bill 
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would be sent to him, I believe you mentioned on 

th&t one time. 

A Well, unle~s it was some lease Aereement between 

Mr. P&rr and Mr. Carrillo. I don't know how they 

would handle ft. 

Q All ri~ht. 

A I h&ve no knowledee of th&t. 

0 All ri~ht, tn ot~er words, yru don't hAve any 

tnfnrmation to really furnish uq w~her or not 

you could tell whether other OPoole would be 

usin2 the enuioment ~~d would be billed for the 

servi.cee? 

A Well, if Mr. P&rr h&d an a~reement with Mr. 

Carrillo thPt he would keeo the trActor uo while 

{twas in his oosses~(on, well, I ima2tne he 

would oay the b"ll. 

Q Rf2ht. 

A And tf he was oayfng full rent to ~r. Carrillo, 

I tma2tne Mr. CArrillo wnuld ~l!ly the b"ll. 

Q And the same wnul~ be truP tf Judee Carrillo had 

a bill with the Benavides Imoleme~t &nd HArdwAre, 

the 0 eoole that bou~ht it b&ck in 72, but you 

wouldn't know About that' 

A No, str, 1 wouldn't know about that. 
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Ju~~~ Carrillo, ~o you r~cPll PVPr havtn~ done 

2 work for thP on thP tractor at Mr. Coultn~'s 

3 r~ftUeAt, Mr. Rurlo1fo Coulin~? 

4 A No. 

5 Q Do you know Mr. Rudnlfo Coulin~~ 

6 A No, !"ir, 

7 Q All rt~ht, do you know who the Bpq8vide~ Imole-

8 ment and Hardware oeoolP are' 

9 A No, l"tr. 

W Q All rt~ht. 

11 
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MR. MITCHh~L: No further ~uesttonA of 

this witneqq, Your Honor. 

MR. FLUSCHE: May I 8noroach the wttnPss, 

Your Honor'1 

THE MASTER: Yes, str. 

MR. FLUSCHE: Lf't me look &t theRe 1ul'lt 

8 minute. 

(Hand~d to Counsel.) 

BY MR, FLUSCHE: 
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Q LP.t 1 A ~P.e, Mr. cr~i~. you havP tPAttfied now that I 
2 durtn~ thP. last year that you havP. workP.d on 

3 thosP tractors at thP Duval County sho~ and at thP 

4 AtlPss Parr ranch, have you workPd on those trac-

s tors on Jud~e Carrillo's ranch in the last year? 

6 A Only not tn -- not this year, no, sir. 

7 Q Now, when ynu say in the last Yf>PT: do you mean 

8 that those -- that thOSP reotliT!'I at the Atl~e 

9 Parr and the county took l)lace in 1975? 

10 A Yes, !'I f.r. 

11 Q All rlJ~;ht, str. LPt me ask you on• other flUes-

12 tfon. Now, do you know why thP tractors were 

13 bein~ worked on in the county Ahoos? 

14 A No, ~ i r. 

15 Q Was there any eauioment in the cnunty shoos that 

16 wa!l available and was not available at the Borjas 

17 ranch? 

18 MR. MITCHELL: Oh, that "'ould bP. the 

19 ranke!llt of '-leflr!uty and Aoeculatf.on. 

20 THE MASTER: I ap;rP.P. 

21 MR. FLUSCHE: All rhht. 

22 THE MASTER: Sustained. 

23 MR. FLUSCHE: I be11evP that h all. 

24 

25 

----~---------------------------------------------------------r-
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2 

BY MR. MITCHELL: 
3 

4 Q Mr. Craig, nne mnr~ ourstion, thP Plains Equi,-

5 ment Comnany, do you all or does it issue work 

6 orders authorizfn~ you to go out nn ~ 1ob? 

7 A YP.~~;, Air. 

8 Ther~ is a work order madr on every job unl•ss 

9 on the jobs right after delivery, sometimPs we 

10 don't make a work nrder on tt bPcause it is in 

ll the sales contract. We have so much warranty on 

12 them, and sometimes it is not madP. unless it is 

13 I'!Omething that ~ertains to a lot of ~arts. 

14 Q The first visit, the likelihood is there wouldn't 

15 be any work orders that you told Ul'l about? 

16 A Yes, 1'1 ir. 

17 Q But there wnuld be work orders nn these other 

18 visits that you have described for thP Court, am 

19 I corrPct? 

~ Q May I ask you nlease, sir, too -- when you are 

22 

23 

24 

25 

relpa~ed by thP Court hPre to see if you can find 

the work ordPrF on these two tra~torl'! and nartfcu-

larly if the work was done any othPr nlace other 

than the Parr -- George Parr, on the Atlee ranch 
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and at the Duval County ~hoo and Judge Carrillo, 

if there werP any others, I wtsh you would null 

t~ose work orders for me. 

Q All rfght, you ~ad an oonortuntty to eYamfne 

those before you came up to testify? 

A No, I didn't, but I'm the only on~ th~t went 

ovpr there and ,.,orked on t~em tractor~ since he 

bought them and that ts the only olace they have 

bf'en. 

Q All rlp;ht, and you wo..Ild r.-mE>mber that? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Judge, I 

havP. no further nuestlons, Your Honor. 

MR. FLUSCHE: That is all I have, Your 

Honor. 

THE MASTER: Thank you, Mr. Cratg, you 

(Witness excused.) 

THE MASTER: Who is your next witness' 

MR. ODAM: Your Hr'lnor, ~~e bllvf' avatlable 

one, two, t~ree, four ~entlemf'n whose testt-

mony I belie~e would bE" vP.ry Rhort. We could 
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I would lik~ to take them out of order 

becausE' Mr. Couling, I think, f.~ going to 

take a very long time on both direct and 

cross. 

I think their testimony would tiP in 

~erfectty wit~ what thP interruotion has 

bf>Pn thus far. 

THE MASTER: That h finf'. 

MR. ODAM: I "'ould cal t Mr. Cril'loforo 

Cha~a and Mr. Cha~a has indicated that hfl' 

would like to have the intProrPtPr and I 

would ltkP to ask Mr. Abarca to come in. 

THE MASTER: All right. 
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MR. ODAM: We will call as our next 

2 witness Crisoforo Chapa. 

3 

4 

5 CRISOFORO CHAPA, 

6 having been duly sworn by the Court, testified 

7 upon this oath, through the Interpreter, Tony 

8 Abara, as follows: 

9 

10 THE MASTER: Mr. Chapa, you may 

ll understand sow~ of the questions addressed 

12 to you 1n English, but I want you to wait 

13 until Mr. Abarca has translated so you will 

14 be certain that you understand the question 

15 and answer the question in Spanish and Mr. 

16 Abarca will translate. 

17 THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

18 THE MASTER: You may proceed, Mr. Odam. 

19 

20 

21 . 

BY MR. ODAM: 
23 

24 Q Please state your full name f'or the record. 

25 A Crisoforo Chapa. 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE .. GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl, TEXAS 7840, 



Q Where do you live? 

2 A Benavides, 

3 Q And what is your type of employment? 

4 A Welder. 

s Q By whom are you employed? 

6 A I, myself? 

7 Q Are you an employee of Duval County? 

8 A Ho, sir, 

9 Q You work tor people who pay you to do jobs? 

10 A Yes, sir. 

11 Q Have you ever been o •. the Borjas ranch? 

12 A Yes, sir. 

13 Q Have you gone on the Borjas Ranch to do work? 

14 A Yes, sir. 

15 Q By whom were you employed to do work on the Borjas? 

16 A 0, P. Carrillo, 

17 Q When did he employ you to do work on the Borjas? 

18 A It was in 1973. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR, MITCHELL: Excuse me, Judge, I 

suppose this is as good a time aa any to 

object. We are going to object to all the 

testimony that predates the certificate of 

election of Judge Carrillo; also any 

testimony beyond the scope of the notice or 

toraal hearing and in addition, we are going 
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to object to the introduction or any 

2 testimony that relates to non-judicial 

3 acts on the theory that the only relevancy 

4 would be those arising in the performance 

5 of his duties of the 229th Judicial District 

6 Court. 

7 THE MASTER: ObjectionJ are overruled. 

8 Q (By Mr. Odam:) You worked in 1973 on the Borjas, 

9 were there any other years you worked on the 

10 Borjas? 

11 A I worked in 1 73 and a portion of 1 74. 

12 Q When you performed the work on the Borjas during 

13 those years, what work did you actually perform 

14 on the Borjas? 

IS A Repairing the tractors. 

16 Q Could you describe the tractors you worked on? 

11 A There were two 36-A tractors that he had. 

18 Q When you say two 36-A tractors, do you me an two 

19 different tractors? 

~ A Yes, sir. 

21 Q Do you know the brand name or those tractors? 

~ A Caterpillar. 

~ Q would you describe their physical appearancei 

24 THE INTERPRETER: He doesn't understand. 

~ Q What do they look like? 
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1 R~ n 

A Caterpillar tractors built by Caterpillar. 

2 Q Could you state, if you know, where the Caterpillar 

3 tractors came from? 

4 MR. MITCHELL: That would be hearsay. 

5 We object. 

6 THE WITNESS: Where did he purchase them 

7 or what? 

B Q If you know, yes. 

9 P. He told me that he had bought them from Plains 

10 Machinery. 

11 Q Who is he? 

12 A Mr • 0. P. Carrillo • 

13 Q What type of work did you do on the two Caterpillar 

14 tractors? 

15 J\ Build the tracks on one and the idles. I just built 

16 the idles and the sprockets. 

17 Q Were you paid by check or cash by Judge o. P. 

18 Carrillo? 

19 A I was paid by check from his own money. 

20 Q The checks that you were paid, do you recall how 

21 much you wtre paid? 

22 P There wei! several jobs that I did for him. One 

23 

25 

job that I did on one tractor was one thousand 

one hundred and some amount and the Other was eight 

hundred; several jobs that I would go back on to 
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- ·--
do repair to them. 

2 Q Did you ever see the two 36•A Caterpillars when the 

3 were not on the Borjas ranch? 

4 A I saw one or them doing a job on a tract of land 

5 he has at Benavides. 

6 Q When you say he, who do you mean? 

7 A o. P. Carrillo. 

8 THE MASTER: I don•t think he quite got 

9 your question. 

10 Q When you say he had the tract of land near Benavidel , 

11 

12 

13 

14 

who is the he, who haJ the tract or land? 

A o. P. Carrillo. 

Q Could you state, if you know, if you ever saw the 

Caterpillar performing work for Duval ~ounty? 

IS A No, sir. 

I& Q Are you employed by Benavides Implement and 

17 Hardware? 

18 A No. 

19 Q Do you know Rudolfo Couling? 

20 A Yes. 

~ Q Did Senor Rudolfo Couling ask you to perform work 

22 

23 

24 

25 

at any time on the tractors? 

A No, str. 

Q Did he ever give you any instructions with respect 

to either of the Caterpillars? 
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A Who? 

2 Q Rudolfo Couling? 

3 A No, sir. 

4 MR. ODAM: Pass the witness. 

5 

6 

7 

8 
BY MR. MITCHELL: 

9 

10 Q Mr. Chapa 

II MR. ODAl-1: I do have one further 

12 quest1.on. 

13 

14 

15 FURTHER EXAMINATION 

16 
BY MR. ODAM: 

17 

n Q Mr. Chapa, are you related to Ruben Chapa? 

~ A I am his father. 

~ Q Are you related to Tete Chapa? 

u A I am his father also. 

22 

23 

24 

MR. ODAM: Passthe w1.tness. 
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2 
BY MR I MITCHELL: 

3 

4 Q And you are also related to Oscar Sanchez? 

5 A He is my son-in-law. 

6 Q Mr. Chapa, the two tractors, the 36-A-143 and the 

7 36-A-470, you have done work on t~ose tractors on 

8 the George Parr ranch, too, h~ve you not? 

9 A No, 

10 Q Have you done work on those tractors on any other 

11 ranches other than tb~ Borjas Ranch? 

12 A No, sir, 

13 Q Do you do other welding work for Judge Carrillo 

14 as well as strike that, I will withdraw that, 

15 Do you do welding work tor other persons in 

16 Duval County who are willing to pay you? 

17 A Yes, sir, 

~ Q And that would, of course, include George Parr? 

19 A I f he paid me , y e s , 

20 Q You did some welding work on the Parranch, didn't 

21 you? 

22 A No, sir, never, 

~ Q You did work for Judge Carrillo? 

24 A For Judge Carrillo, yes. 

25 Q When do you recall, Mr. Chapa, was the first time 
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you worked for Judge Carrillo? 

2 A Well, it was in 1973 in May or about then. 

3 Q Mr. Chapa, now, in my last que" tion, I had re:rerenc~ 

4 to any and all welding work for Judge Carrillo, 

5 not only on the tractors, but other than the work 

6 on the tractors. 

7 A I fixed his cattle trailers one time and did small 

8 jobs. 

9 Q When was the first time you did work for Judge 

10 Carrillo? 

11 A It was in May ct: 197::.. 

12 Q And when was the last time you had done work for 

13 him? 

14 A It was in 1974, but I am not too certain on what 

15 month it was, if it was March or April, but around 

16 then. 

17 Q Can you tell us whether in each instance Judge 

18 Carrillo paid you personally for your work? 

~ A Yes, sir. 

~ Q Did you know, Mr. Chapa, whether or not any of thos~ 

21 tractors the 36-A tractors, had done work on the 

22 Parr ranch? 

~ A I do not know, sir, because I never visited those 

24 places. 

~ Q At the time that you did work on the tractors on 
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the Borjas ranch, Mr. Ct»J. pa~ there was only one 

2 tractor there, is that a fact? 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q And did you happen to know of your own personal 

s knowledge ~re the other one was? 

6 A Yes, they said it was working over at the George Pa r 

7 ranch. 

a Q Other than the George Parr mnch and the Borjas 

9 ranch, do you know of your own personal knowledge 

10 whether either ore of these tractors has ever done 

11 work for anybody elH~ in Duval County? 

12 A I do not know, sir. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. MITCHELL: No further questions 

MR. ODAM: That is all wo have. 

THE MASTER: You may step down and 

you are through to go, Mr. Chapa. 

MR. ODAM: Mr. Abarca, you mtght 

stick around, if you will, and ask the next 

witness, Mr. Arnaldo Amaraz if ne will need 

an interpreter. 

MR. ABARCA: The witness says he 

can testify in English, Your Honor. 

THE MASTER: Very well. 
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ARNALDO AMARAZ, 

2 having been duly sworn by the Court, testified 

3 upon his oath as follows: 

4 

5 

6 
BY MR, ODAM: 

7 

B Q Would you please state your full name for the 

9 record? 

10 A Arnaldo Amaraz. 

11 Q Amaraz, is that cloo..: to the correct pronounciation? 

12 A Yes. 

13 Q Where do JOU live? 

14 A Benavides. 

15 Q By whom are you employed? 

~ A Right now? 

17 Q Yes. 

U A Honcho Drilling Company. 

19 Q What type o.f work do you do for Honcho Drilling 

20 Company? 

~ A Roughneck. 

~ Q How long have you lived in Benavides, Texas? 

~ A Well, since I was born. 

24 Q How old are you? 

25 A 26, 
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Q Have you ever been on the Borjas ranch? 

2 A Yes. 

3 Q When you went on the Borjas ranch, could you state 

4 a date or time you went to the Borjas ranch? 

s A I guess I started on February or March or '73· 

6 Q And what was the nature or your employment in 

7 February or March, 1973, what di~ you do? 

a A Operated the bulldozer. 

~ Q Could you describe the bulldozer that you operated, 

10 what did it look like? 

11 A It was a D-8 Caterp~.:.lar. 

~ Q And could you stat~ if you know, to whom that 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Caterpillar belonged? 

MR. MITCHELL: That would be hearsay. 

We object. 

THE MASTER: Cownsel is correct unless 

you show the basis of his knowledge, 
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1868 

MR. ODAM: All ri,:~:ht, sir, let meo 

2 

3 Q Who em~loyed you to ~ork on thP Cat~r~illars? 

s Q Ye~, who hired you to work on the- Cat~r~tllare? 

6 A Well, Fidel and 0. P. 

7 0 \-Tho is Fldeol? 

8 A Fidel Saenz; 

9 Q Fidel Saenz and who ~lse? 

10 A 0. P. 

II Q And when you be,:~:an to work in Fe-bruary or March 

12 nf 1973, then for how ton~ a oeortod of time did 

13 you work on the Bor1as? 

14 A Say about a year. 

15 Q A ye~~tr? 

16 A Ye~. 

17 Q And what wa~ the nature of your eomoloyment the 

18 Pntfre time workfn~ on th~ bulldo~er? 

19 A Yes. 

~ Q Dld you do any ot~er work bestde~ worktn~ on the 

21 bulldo?.er? 

22 A Just tht> bu 11 do:r.f'r. 

~ Q Now the bulldo~er t~at you noerate~. did tt have-

24 

25 

any tyoes of marks ~n tt as to name, identlflca-

tf.on? 
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li 
9 

II 10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

11 

19 

20 

11 

12 

13 

h 

15 

1 8fi9 

A Nn. 

Q An~ ynu woul~n't en out thrr~ nn -- cnuld you 

ba~t~. ocea~~on~1ly or ~hAt -- how frPau~ntly 

A WPtl, ffv~ day~ ~ we~k. MondAy throu~h Friday. 

Q And was thPrP ~ny other tyne of ~ork that you o~r-

doz~r? 

A Ju~t oo~rate the bulldozer. 

Q And what would you do wtth the bulldo~er on th~ 

Bor1a!'l? 

A Root olow and rack. 

THE MASTER: Your answer wAs root olow 

and r~tek? 

A YPlll. ~ i r. 

Q And when ynu did the root olnwtn2 and raekin~, 

who oafd you, sctu~tlly 28VP you money? 

A 0. P. 

Q And how t'id .Tud2P. C~trrf.lln !liiiP you thP money, Wll8 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

ft fn C8~h or rh~ck? 

16ZO I 
A PPr!!onsl rhPck. 

Q Whf'n you ~,.Vf' ,.,hPn hP P:AV~ you thP. pE'rsonAl 

check, H ynu r~c81l, ho'!oJ muC'h 'M!I:"P you odd? 

A ThrPP hundrPd ilo11~tr!' 8 month. 

Q ThrPP hundr~d l!t month? 

A Yt:!~. 

Q Th!VP you f'ver bPE'n Pm"Dloyf'd by thP county of 

A No. 

formin~ ~ork for DuvAl County' 

A No. 

0 ArP you -- hAVP you hf'ard thP nAmE' Bf'navidf's 

A Nn. 

Q Do you know ~r. Rudolfo Coultnq? 

A Dn I know him? 

A Ju!!t a littlP bit, not very much. 

0 Dnf'S Mr. Coulinp rver ~fvp you Any fn~tructions 
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2 

3 

4 

s 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1 R71 

A No. 

0 Df~ you ~v~r hav~ ~ny «nvPr~~tfon with Mr. 

Cnulin~ About ooPrat'n~ thP CAtero111ar? 

A No. 

0 And when youooPrRtPd thP C~tern111Rr on Geor~e 

P~rr'~ ranch, who in~tructed you to ~n to GPor~e 

P~trr'~ ranch? 

A Wpll, -- WP11, who ~ent mP nVPT thPre, you me~tn? 

0 YPc;. 

A 0. P. 

Q Jud~P CArrillo ~ent you with the bulldozer over 

to f,porp.r PRrr'c; rAnch? 

A y,..,. 

on GPoreP P8rr'F r~tnch? 

Q And what tynP of work did you do th~rP? 

A Root nlow. 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

1 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1872 

Q An~ who o8id you to dn that work? 

A 0. P. 

Q And how much did Jud~E' C~trri1ln nay you to do 

A Thr ~amE', thrPP hundrE-d dollars a month. 

Q fli_(l VOU PVE'r !'lPE' Anyone Pll'lE' nnE'r&tfng the bull-

A ThP onE' I u~ed to ooE"ratp? 

A N..,, ~ir. 

Q Di~ you ~PP, At Any timE', morE' thAn nne bull-

dozPr nut nn thE' Bor1as? 

A No. 

Q ThP nnP bulldoP.er that you ~aw out on thE' Bor1a~ 

I bE"ltPvE' it i~ your tE'sttmnny Parl{Pr th~ only 

olacP you p~w ft wAs on GPnT~P PArr'~ ranch ~hen 

A Rf~ht, ~nrrPct. 

MR. ODAM: P~tss thP ~""- tnE'~S. 

BY MR. MITCHELL: 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

24 

1871 

Q Mr. Almara~, ~o you know of your own nersonal 

theAP two bulldo~ers le~sPd or not? Do you know 

A Say that ouPstion a~atn. nleaAe. 

0 Do you know that in 71 when you rlt~ the work 

shout which you havp testtfterl t~ that he had 

these bulldozers leased or rentP~? 

0 An~ how woul~ you -- how ~td you know that they 

wPrP. rente~. if you--

A That i.A what I heard. 

Q Now, dtd you ~o any work on the Borjas ranch on 

in 197' that you recall? Perhans over Into 74. 

MR. MITCHELL: If I may be ,ermi.tted to 

1Pad him a bit, Jud~P. 

Q Or any other t{me after 197,, do you recall at 

11111 

A Ret)eat that. 

Q Do you know of ~ny other t!mP, I believe you have 

testified in ~nRwPr to the ouet 4 nn nut to you by 

Mr. Odam, with the Attorney General's office, that 

you went to work Aometime in February or March 

of 1971 o,eratin~ the bull~ozer on the Borjas 
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3 

4 
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25 

1874 

ranch l!lnd 1oJOrkE'd ri~ht on throuJY;h 197"\. 

Now, my nu~stion is, i.s th8t the only time 

thltt you did any work was thflt one year? 

A ~. 

Q AH riJ!ht. Now, ~~tnrl i.s ; t your te!'lt{mony that 

durin~ that sRme yPI!Ir that you wE-nt over to the 

GPor~P Parr ranch with one of thP bulldozers to 

dn snme root olowinJ! over therE' on it? Would 

thAt have been 11l~o in 71, do you remember? 

A I ~uess it wl!ls tn 71. I em not very sure. 

Q All riJ!;ht, but you do -- you 11re sure that durin~ 

the t{me you workE'~ for JudJte Carrillo or l!lt thP 

time you "'ork.-d on the GeorJ!e PArr ranch, with 

the bulldozer, that JudJ!e C11rrtllo ol!l4d you, naid 

v~ur salary of thr.-e hundr.-d a mont~. am I correct? 

A Corr.-ct. 

Q All 

work 

wlth 

A No. 

0 All 

r i l!h t, and do you recall havf.n~ done any 

on any ot~er l)eorson's r~tnch at ~tny tf.me 

thPSP -- "'i. t h these bulldnr.ers? 

ri,.ht. 

MR. ~ITCHELL: No further f'Uesttons. 

Th~tnk you, Your Honnr. 

MR. ODAM: No further ouestions, Your 

Honor. 
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1875 

THF. MASTER: Y~u ar~ fr~e tn ~o, thank 

you, v~ry much. 

MR. ODAM: The n~xt ~ftn•ss, Your Honor, 

is Mr. AhPl Rutz. 

ABEL RUIZ, 

!!!..11!· ODAM: 

Q Would you pleas~ st~te your full name? 

A Ab~l A. Rut,.. 

0 And ~here do you r~side, where do you ltve? 

Q WerP you servPd with 8 ~ub~oen8 to be here this 

mnrninfZ? 

Q By whom are you nresently ~m~loye~? 

A Who 

Q Who ~ays you ri ll,t now, ,.,ho do yc•u work for? 

A Edwtn Co'l'l'. 
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1876 

Q Edwin' 

A Y~s. 

Q And what was the last word, oo~rat~r~? 

A I just work on the field, oil field. 

Q What ty~e of work ~o you do for Edwin Co~? 

A Just labor. 

Q Labor? 

Q How lon~ have you lived in Benavides, TP~as? 

A All my life. 

Q Do you know Judp,e 0. P. Carrillo? 

Q Can you identify him as betn~ orpsent in the 

courtroom today? 

A Uh-huh. 

Q Now, Mr. Rut~. have ynu PVer h~d occasfon to b~ 

nn thP Bor1as ranch? Have you Pver been on the 

Bor _1 as ranch? 

A Yes, !'!i.r. 

Q Do you recall thP date or tfmps that yrohave 

been on the Borja~ ranch? 

A Well, I ju~t remember e~actly -- t don't remember 

what month it was but i. t w11s in 197,. 

Q 1973? 

A YPs. 
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·I 
I 
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I 
I 

!I 
il 
11 

!I 
II ,, 
' 

I 
I 

0 And whPn vnu w~nt nut nn th~ Bnr,~~ ranch for 

Q No, whv ~i~ vou en nn the Bnr1~~? 

A I w~nt to ~ork ~fth thP Catero4l1ar. 

Q And wh~n you went on the Bnr~aq ran~h. you workP~ 

nn a CatProillar? 

rAnch? 

A Ril!ht. 

0 ThP CAterot11Ar~. did you work nn bnth Caterotllar~ 

or 1u!lt on rmP? 

A .TuRt on nne. 

0 Dt~ you at any timP ~eP anyonP Plse wnrkfnJ! on a 

Q Fidel SlUmP.? 

A YPR. 

0 And whPn ynu ~nrkP~ on thP Bnria~, wh~ aetually 

htrpd vou tn work nn thP Boria~' 
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1878 

A Mr. 0. P. C~rrllln. 

Q JudRP o. P. c~rr11lo? 

A y,~. c:ir. 

Q Do you recall wh~t Ju~~~ 0. P. Carrtllo ~aid to 

you whpn hP wanted you to RO to work out on the 

Bor1ac;? 

A Uh-huh. 

Q t-7hat d'd hr s111y? 

A Wrll, hP told mP if I want~~ to run a dozer for 

him and I c;111fd 11111 right, I wt1\ go ahrllld. 

Q And whrn you went out thrrP for how lon~ a 

nrrt od of tt_mP. how many dayA or month5 or 

A I wnrke~ thrPe months. 

Q ThrPe month11? 

A Ye$. 

Q And whPn you worked thoRP three month~. how many 

dayc; a wPek did you work? 

A I worked ffvP dayc; " week. 

·q Do you rec1.1ll how much you "tlrP nai.d r'ur-ln2 thoAf' 

ftvP dayc; a wePk for th~ thr~e months? 

A I waF getttnv. t~rPP hundre~ dollarc; a month. 

Q And who actually oafd you thP monthly -- from 

whom --

A Mr. -- Judge 0. P. Carrftlo. 

Q Judgp 0. P. Carrillo? 
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A PPr~on~l chPck. 

2 
Q That was my neYt nue~tfon, dfd hP oay you in ca~~ 

3 
or by chPck. 

4 
A Chf'ck. 

5 
Q And~~~ thP chf'ck nn hi~ "Prsonal Account, tf 

6 you rE>call? 

7 
A YF'S, •dr, 

8 
Q And thP chPck t~at hP ""td y~u. dtd you ever work 

9 
thP CatProi_l 1 ar or thf' Cat~rot 1 lar~ any olacP 

10 
othPr than the Bor1as ranch? 

11 
A Ju~t nn thE' Bor1as ranch. 

12 
Q Jugt on the BnriAs ranch1 

13 
A Ye!ll., sir. 

14 
Q And did you At Any timE' E'VPr see t'"ta t Cl'lteroi11ar 

IS whPn H WitS not on the Bor18s ranch? 

16 A l'-ln. 

17 Q Could you de~cribp a~ain what tyoP of actual 

18 work that you ~nu1d do on the CatPro•ltar. 

19 

20 
Q Plowf.n~? 

21 
A Root olowi_n~. 

22 
Q Say l!P,afn. 

23 
A Root "1owinP-. 

24 0 Root olowtn·o:? 

25 
A YP9. 

--+---------------------------- -r-
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HR. ODAH: 

E X A M I N A T I 0 N 

BY MR. MIT('TELL: 

Q Mr. Rut~. can vou te11 the Jufpr who you have 

t~1kP~ tn About t~t~ ca~e? Who tAlke~ tn vou 

Ahnur thP c8AP beforP you c~me un here tn testifv? 

A Whn talked to me? 

Q Ye~. havr you ta1ke~ to anybo~y about what your 

A No, r hAven't tA1kerl to anybndv. 

Q Nobody has tA1ke~ to you at All about your test'-

monv? 

A It was, I ~uess, Wednesday when I got tt. 

Q Had anybody talke~ to you before you got your 

suhooena stout what your testlmonv •~' 

A No, they ta1ke~ to me ln SAn D'e~o nne ttme. 

0 All rh~t. Do you know who -- ~hether it was a 

member of tl-t .. Attorney GPnPr"l'f' .,taff? 

A Uh-huh. 
---··r 
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Q Do you kno,., "''ho it WillA? 

2 A A TP:!!:RF Ran~Pr, I <>UP.!!~ • I clon't kno"''· 

3 Q l~a !' th"r p II Mr. p,., .. ,e 111 

4 A I "on't km·•. 

5 Q f-Ir. M.c~rtinP,.., 

6 A 1 ilon't rPmPmber Nho -- '·•hat hl.~ n11m~F> Wa!'!. 

7 Q '-Ill!': ~t ,. b i P:. tPll man, Mr. Woocl~? 

9 A A hi~. olil tall man. 

10 A No. it t.A -- t t useil to bE' 11 money b11nk, thE' 

II nlil monpy bank bPfort. 

12 Q Thr nlrl ba11l< bu4ldtng nm., useil bv t'lP. AttornPy 

14 A 

16 A ThP "PC''1n~ floor, yPs, !':ir. 

17 0 Ani! how ~til ynu ~Pt un thE'rP? 

18 

19 mP un. 

21 A About onP or two. 

22 Q AskPd you 11bnut thP. thln~s th11t you havP bePn 

23 

24 A Yes, •dr. 

~ Q Is thllt correct? 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
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2 0 An~ MhAt vnu hAVP tolrl thPm thPn {s whAt ynu 

3 

4 A Ri !!h t. 

5 

6 

7 

8 A 

10 

11 A 

12 0 Any .,,,rk thAt you ~ i_c'l dn for .Tud!'P Cl'lrrt lln, 

13 thnur:h 

14 A R~l"ht. 

16 A P. f oh t: • 

18 

~ 0 And ~fcl you knn~ Arnoldo Alml'lra~? 

21 A YPr., " { r. 

23 him for thP ~~rk? 
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A Well, I ~urs~ they did. 

Q All right. 

A I cHdn't when I ouit there, I ~idn't know 

wh~t ws~ goin~ on t~ere from then on. 

0 Now, have you done any other worh for JudRe 

Carrillo at any other time, ot~er than the time 

that you tt>~tf.fiec to, Mr. Rut,, that is the 

A R"{ght. 

0 Have you done Any other work at Rny other tf.me 

for him? 

Q Yes, sir. 

A No, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: Coulc:l I have 1ust one 

minute, JudS!'t>. 

(Dt~cus~ion off the record,) 

Q 't.Jss Hr. F'i.df'l Saen? on thP ranch when you werf' 

worki.nP: tht>rP? 

A Me an~ him w~rf' working to~ether. 

A Ye'!':, cir. 
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1971? 

A Yeo, •dr. 

Q Did you knn~ 'fr. Rui?., of your 0"''" nerson111l 

by Mr. Cerrilto'r 

A I don't know, I ~fdn 1 t 

Q A 11 ri.l!ht. 

MR. ~fiTCHELL: No further nuP~tions, 

Your Honor. 

MR. ODAM: No further nuPsttnns, Your 

H'lnnr. 

THE MASTER: You mlly steo down, Mr. 

RuiP, an~ you are free to ~o. 

MR. ODAM: We csll e~ our nP~t ~ftness 

F IIJ'E:L SAENZ, 

havfn~ been duly eworn, testffted unnn his oath a~ 

fn1lowl'l, tn-w{t: 

E X A M I N A T I 0 N 
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BY ~. ODAM: 

Q Would you ~lea~P state your name. 

Q Can you hear me? 

A t am hard to ~ear. talk a lttt1e louder, nlease. 

MR. ODAM~ Your Honor, mRV t stand over 

'f,'fE MAS'!'ER: You may !'I tand rtp.:ht up 

there 'f you ~tsh. 

MR, ODAM: That ts fine. 

THF. MASTER: You certainly may. 

Q Can you hear me better here? 

0 Would you olease stat~ your full name, str? 

A Sir? 

0 Which ~~ your pood ear? 

A Th'" rme. 

0 All rt11:ht. 

MR. ODAM: May I stand over here? 

THE MASTER: Yes, you may. 

0 Would you olea~e state your full name? 

A YPs, Ftdel Saen~. caottal F-1-D-E-L. 

0 Would you like to have a Soanish interorPter 

talk to you and htm talk to you in S"antsh, and 
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THE MASTER: I think •t •~ 1ust a 

MR. MITCHELL: YP~, ~ir. 

Q (Bv Mr. Odftm:) Mr. Saen~, wherP do you live? 

A Bpnavides, TPYft~, Duval County. 

Q And how long have you lived {n Benavides? 

A All my lifP. 

0 And bv w~om ~rP you oresentlv emoloyed, who do 

you work for') 

A 0. ~. Carrt11o. 

0 And what do you c'ln for 0. P. Carrl_llo? 

A I run A root "low trActor for him. 

Q And how lon~ hAve vou workPd for 0. P. Carrillo? 

A Every ~incf' Dpcember 20th, 1.97'-. 

Q And where dfd you ~ork beforP that? 

A I 1-•orkf'~ d' fff'r~>nt iob~. you knnw, for road 

~ontra~tor~ and ~tuff likf' that: rou~hnf'cktne 

~ometi.mes. 

Q And who hired you ln 1972? 

A Mr. Carrillo. 

Q Judgf' 0. P. Carrillo? 

A Ye~, si.r. 

Q Do you reco~nlze him as betn~ in thP courtroom 

today? 

A 'P, !'li.r. 
·--tt----------------------------

CIIATiiAM & ASSOCI1\TES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTEL.OPE • GUARANTY SANK PL.AZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl, TEXAS ?8401 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

0 Do you know ~h~n you ~ork~d. you m~nttonrl the 

root nlow, whPrP d4d you work wfth root olow~? 

A At hf~ nlare. 

Q Which nlace r~ th~t? 

Q Dfd you PVPr work --

MR. ODAM: Correction, strike that. 

Q '-1hl'lt tyne of enuinment di.d ynu work on on the 

Bnrie~? 

A It was ~ root nlow, mowin~ brush, clesri.n~ brush. 

0 What tyne of machine was tt? 

A D~ Caterpil1ar. 

Q And ho~' meny ClttPrntllar!'l, if you know, "''E're on 

A Two. 

Q Ynu sew two Caterntllars? 

A !Hr? 

Q You ~~~• two Cateroillars? 

A YPS. 

0 Do you know ~"ho thP CatP.rn~ llar!'l hf'l ongpcl to? 

A Well, thE' best I understand, hE' rE>ntf'd them from 

the Pla{n!'l Ml'lchinery tn Cnrnus Christi. 

0 All ri~ht, s~r. now --

A Corous Chri.sti, Tewas. 

Q H8ve you ever workf'd for Judt>:e 0. P.Cmr!llo anywherr 
T-
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~Y~~ut on the Bor;as? 

2 

3 0 An~ coul~ you ~~scrtbe where tho~e other ~lac~s 

4 

5 A One is the Flnrt~~ rsnch thP nth~r ~fde of H~bbron-

6 vlll~. 

1 

(Discussion off the recor~.) 
8 

9 A It ts the samP ~nd En2lis~. but it ha~ a dfffer-

10 

II Q Now, the two ul~ces you worked w~rP OT\ly on the 

12 Bor1as and th~ Flortda ran~h? 

13 A Well, there are two mor~ small nlaces over ther~ 

14 that he has 2ot th~t I have work~d on them. 

IS Q Do they have names on them? 

16 A WPll, one of thPm they call 4t the BPthel ranch. 

17 0 What word? 

18 A The Bethel r~nch, that placP. 

19 0 All rf~ht, and what tyf)e of work did you do on 

20 the Florida and Bethel ranch? 

21 A On the Bethel ranc~ I did some dfsc nlowin2. 

22 0 W~s it with the Caterf)illars? 

23 A YE>s. 

24 Q Now, the CatPrp-lll~trR, tHd you at any timE> wnrk 

25 

--4--------------------------------
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b~longtn~ to Jud~~ 0. P. Carrillo? 

2 A No, sir. 

3 0 Do you know wh~th~r or not thP Cat~r~tt~~ wer~ 

4 Pvrr on any oth~r land, oth~r th8n th8t b~lon~-

5 in~ to Judpe 0. P. Carrillo? 

6 A OthPr land you ~ay? 

7 Q Ye~. 

8 A He loan~d onr of thPm the fir~t t{mr to Geor~e 

9 B. PJ~trr, y P!'l . 

10 0 And do ynu knnw ~·hE'n that would be? 

11 A I don't rPmE'mbrr pyactly. Thr fir!'lt time, thP 

12 fir~t nne WA~ tak~n thrrr in 1976, I ~ue~s, 73, 

13 ~ometh{n~ like thJ~tt. 

14 Q To GPnrP-:~ PArr'~ r~tnch? 

15 A Y P s . !'I i r, 

16· 0 Did you work e-n thE' Cl'ltE'roi.llRr on Gror,ze P~trr'!'l 

17 

18 

19 Q Do you know t.•ho 1.•nrke~ on th~rE'? 

20 A Arnoldo Almara~. 

21 Q All rt~ht, ~{d a~ynne work on the Cateroillars 

22 on thE' Bnr1a!'l othE'r tha~ you? 

23 

24 

~ A AhPl Ruir and Arnoldo Almaraz. 

---lif------------------------------------ --- '. 
I 
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Q And w;~n you work~d on the Bor1A~. who naid you? 

A Mr. C~rrillo, 0. P. Csrrtl1o. 

Q And how mu~h did h~ ~Ay you? 

A Thr~P. hundr~d dollArs 8 month. 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\_ 

\ 
\ 
\ 
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Q And you have worked there since December 20, 

1972? 

A Yes. 

Q Until the present time? 

A Until the present time. 

Q And you atlll work there? 

A Yes. 

~ Now, when you were paid, who actually paid you? 

A He did. 

Q Did he pay you cash or by check? 

A His personal check. 

Q Was the check on his account? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you recall what bank it was on? 

A I think it was the .·outh Texas Bank in 'lice. 

~ Have you ever heard of Benavides Implement and 

Hard ware? 

fl No, str. 

Q Have you ever heard of Mr. Rudolfo Couling? 

A Yes, he was working in the tax collector's office. 

Q Did Mr. Couling ever have any conversation with 

you about the Caterpillars? 

A No. 

Q Did he ever ask you to work on the Caterpillars? 

A No. 

----- _,_ 
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Q Did you ever work for Duval County? 

2 A No, sir. 

3 '~ Do you know whether those Caterpillars ever did 

4 wort< for Duval County-? 

6 Q Is your answer no, they didn •t, or you don •t know? 

7 A They d idn • t. 

8 Q. Did they do work for the county? 

9 A No. 

10 c;, They never did? 

II A No. 

12 ~ They only d i<l work on the Borjas ranch and George 

13 Parr's ranch? 

14 1\ Right. 

15 MR. ODAM: Passthe witness, Your 

16 Honor. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

BY MR. MITCHELL: 
21 ------------

22 Q Mr. Saenz, I am Arthur lHtchell from Austin, Texas 

23 and I repre~ent Judge Carrillo. 

24 A Glad to know you. 

25 Q Have yo1.1 ever seen me before? 

CIIATiiAM & ASSOCIATES 
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A No, B !.r, 

2 Q Can you hear me all rtght'l 

3 A Can you talk a l!.ttle bit louder? 

4 Q All right, Can you tell us who has talked to you 

5 about your testimony here today? 

6 ,; About w~at? 

7 9 Who have you talked to before yon came up here 

8 today to ts s ti fy? 

9 J.\ Nobody. 

10 Q Did the Rangers come up and talk to you? 

II THE MAS'L l: The only problem is the 

12 phrastng of your questiJn, I could under-

13 stand that to mean did he talk to anybody 

14 about his testtmony today, 

IS J'.!R. MITCHELL: Thank you. 

!6 ·~ Did you go to San Diego and talk to anyone about 

17 your tPati.mony, Mr. Saenz? 

18 A No, sir. 

~ Q You have been working for Judge Carrillo since 

20 December, 1972? 

21 A That; is r.lght. 

~ ~ And you have worked on the Borjas Ranch? 

23 A Yes. 

u Q The Florla ranch and the Bidal ranch? 

25 A Yes. 

Clli\THAM & i\SSOU,'\TES 
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Q And you have been employed by Judge Carrlllo and 

2 nobody else'? 

3 A That la right. 

4 .t And on the two tre.c tors you were asked about ln 

5 your testimony, your testimony was that to your 

6 Know~edge, Judge Carrillo had rented them? You 

7 testified earlier those tractors nad been rented 

8 by Judge Carrillo? 

9 A Yes. 

10 Q Can y:>u tell us how many times the tractors were 

II over at the George ~~rr ranch from 1972 until 

12 George ~arr killed himself in 1975? 

13 A •rwo different times. 

14 Q When was the last time the tractors were over at 

IS the George Parr ranch? 

16 A 'l'he last one was over there when he killed himself. 

17 Q As a matter of fact, weren•t there times when 

18 both tractors were over at the Parr ranch? 

19 A Yes, one of them was. 

20 Q Do ;vou remember ever when both tractors were over 

21 at the Parr Ranch? 

22 A One of' them was taken over the first time and then 

23 the other one, different times. 

24 Q Do you kno'l whether both of them •·1ere at the Parr 

25 ranch when Mr. Parr killed himself? 

--~----------------------------------------------------------
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A No, just one of them. 

2 Q All right. During this time, Mr. Saenz, that you 

3 worked with these tractors -- first, let me 

4 ~sk you, you were paid by Judge Carrillo on his 

5 personal check, ts thnt correct? 

6 A Yes. 

7 ~; The gas and oil that went lnto those tractors, 

8 do yo~ Know Judge Carrillo bought that gas and oil? 

9 A That is correct. 

10 Q Do you know whether, in 1973, he was paying the 

II rent on th~ tract0r ? 

12 A He was paying the rent. 

13 Q Do you kn01v of an~Jbody el.se 's money or the county 

14 money or anybody else •a money that ever went to 

15 pay for th~se tractors? 

16 A No, sir. 

17 r.m. MITCHELL: No further questions. 

18 HR. ODAM: No further que~tions. 

19 THE MASTER: Thank you, Mr. Saenz, you 

20 are free to go. 

21 MR. ODAM: we will recall Mr. Rudolfo 

22 · 0011ling. 

23 

24 

25 

--~---------------------------------------------------------
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RUDOLFO COULING 

2 was recalled as a witness and having been 

3 previously sworn, testified upon his oath 

4 as follows: 

5 

6 THE MASTER: Mr. Couling, step back 

7 up. You are still under oath, of course. 

8 THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

9 

10 

II 

12 
BY MR I ODAM: 

13 

14 Q Mr. Couling, as the Court just instructed you, 

15 you are still under oath, 

16 A Yes, sir. 

17 Q Just like you were yesterday and the day before? 

18 A Yea, sir. 

19 Q When you were testifying yesterday, we had gotten 

20 to the point, before we interrupted your testimony, 

21 into the examination of E-95. I believe you 

22 identified that as being filled out by you? 

23 A Yes, sir. 

~ Q I show you E-96. Could you state for the record 

25 whether or not the amounts of money on the claim 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
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jacket, E-96, is the same as you filled out for 

2 

3 A They are both the same. 

4 Q And I show you ·,.sha t has been marked E-97, which is 

5 a check in payment of that claim, is the amount 

6 the same? 

7 MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me. May I be 

8 given the opportunity -- may I have just a 

9 minute --you started where, counsel? 

10 MR. ODAM: With E-95, 96 and 97. 

11 MR. MITC~~-:LL: All right, sir. Thank 

12 you. 

13 Q (By Mr. Odam:) E-97 is a check from the Count.\· 

14 of Duval? 

15 A Yes. 

16 \~ Did you receive thatcheck? 

17 A Yes. 

18 Q W ha t d i d y o u d o w i t h i t 1 

~ A Sent it for deposit to the Rio Grande Bank. 

20 Q I belie~e that is where we left off with your 

21 testimony yesterdw7 

22 A Yes. 

23 MR. ODAM: Your Honor, if' I could use 

24 your bench, it would help me to put some 

25 of these papers in order. 

-tt-------------------------------
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THE MJ\STER: Yea, sir. 

2 Q I show you, Mr. Couling, Exhibits 98, 99 and 100, 

3 which are all in evidence. 

4 I ask that you look at what has been marked 

5 as E-?8, E-99 and E-100. Now, E-98, could you 

6 generally describe what it is? 

7 A It is an invoice from Benavides :rmplement and 

8 Hardware made out to Duval County, precinct t~ 

9 Q Could you identify who billed out the amount of 

10 money there? 

11 A I did, sir. 

12 Q What is the description there? 

13 A Rental on tractors. 

14 Q What tractors are those that were rented to Duval 

IS County, Precinct 2? 

16 A T.ICI tr.actors purchased from the Plains Machinery 

17 here in Corpus. 

18 ~~ And you were sending this in to where? 

19 A The county. 

20 Q And now, this invoice, \ihat did you do with the 

21 original copy of this original copy of the 

22 invoice, E-9H, what did you do with it? 

~ A I left it in the office and Ramiro Carrillo 

24 

25 

picked it up. 

MR. MITCHELL: I move to strike. 
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THE MASTER: Were you there 1 

2 THE WITNESS: Yes, sir, I gave them to 

3 him. 

4 Q. (By Mr. 0dam:) Exhibit 100, can you identify what 

5 E-100 is? 

6 I\ Yes, si.r, that ts a check: from Duval County, 

1 ~.,. Is lt in the same amount 13.s the t--,voice that you 

8 turned in? 

9 A Yes, sir. 

10 Q Did you personally receive E-100? 

11 A Yes, s1.r, 

12 Q. What did y0u do with tt? 

13 A Sent lt for deposit to the Bank of Rto Grande City. 

14 Q. Now, the tractors you are referring to that were 

IS rented to the county, do you know, or can you state 

16 if you do know, was there any work for those 

17 tractors performed for Duval County? 

18 A No, sl.r, 

19 Q. Now, the tractors that you are referrtng to, can 

20 you state whether or not, l.f you know, did those 

21 tractors ever do work: for Duval County? 

22 A Theyneverdtd. 

23 Q. What ts the basis for the billing of the county 

24 for th•t amount of money? 

25 A When the tractors were purchased, I was told by 
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o. P. that he bought the tractors through my store 

2 and he was going to take them to his ranch and I 

3 was supposed to mke tickets every month for 

4 rental to the county on those tractors. 

5 ~ Who told you that? 

A :.J. P. Carrillo. 

Q SJ you filled out the invoices on that? 

A Yes, sir. 

~ Next, I show you, Mr. Couling, what has been marked 

es Exhibit E-101-3, 101-4 and 101-2 and ask you 

II to state if y?u caL recognize what 101-4 is? 

12 A That is an invoice made out to Duval County, 

13 Precinct 2, in care of Juan Leal, and it says 

14 pipe trailer and four pipe wrenches. 

IS Q Can you identify 101-2? 

16 A Yes, that is an invoice, 787, made out for rental 

17 on a tractor for one thousand nine do1~s 

18 seventy cents. 

19 Q 101-2, .ts it your testimony this is in the same 

20 sequence of invoices for the same tractors? 

21 A Yes, s 1 r. 

~ Q What did you do with 101-21 

~ A It was deposlled ln the bank. 

~ Q No, the invoice? 

~ A I prepared it. Now, on this invoice, I didn•t mak, 
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II 

2 
'] 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2S 

it. 

Q Do you know who did make these invoices? 

A The top two are maybe Lorenzo, I don•t know. 

Q So the invoices you have there that are marked 

101-3 and 1)1-4, can you identify who filled those 

out? 

A Cleofus Gonzalez. 

Q How can you tell that? 

A He has his initials on this sold by blank. 

Q These invoices that I show you there, I show you 

what has been marke~ as E-103, the county check 

in the amount of one thousand sixty-seven dollars. 

A Yes. 

Q Can you state whether or not that check relates 

to those invoices? 

MR. MITCHELL: Hearsay, we ob,ject; not 

having personal knowledge of the invoices 

101-2, 3 or 4, apparently and need to form 

a basis for his opinion. 

THE MASTER: Show the basis for his 

knowledge. 

Q The invoices that you have in your left hand, once 

they were filled out, can you state what happened 

to those invoices? 

MR. MITCHELL: Of your own knowledge. 
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Q Yes, of your personal knowledge. 

2 A Uo, sir. 

3 Q Did you receive this check in the amount of one 

4 thousand sixty-seven dollars? 

s A Yes. 

6 Q What did you do with that check? 

7 A It was deposited in the First Strte Bank of San 

8 Diego. 

9 MR. ODAM: And for clarification, the 

10 record should reflect that from our 

II stipulation thut E-102 is the claim jacket 

12 in the amount of one thousand one hundred 

13 fifty-seven dollars and the stipulation is 

14 that the enclosed i terns, 101 and its 

IS sub-parts, total the same amount of money 

16 and would be what Mr. Meek would say if he 

17 were testifying. 

18 MR. MITCHELL: I would rather have it 

19 couched in terms of Mr. Meek telling us 

20 that is what Mr. Meek told us. 

21 MR • ODAM : R i gh t • 

22 MR. MITCHELL: And the stipulation is 

23 based on that. 

24 THE MASTER: Yes. 

25 MR. MITCHELL: I might want to call Mr. 

--It---------------------~----------
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1 04 

Meek back in face of some of the testimony 

2 to make that determination. 

3 THE MASTER: You have that right. 

4 Q (By Mr. Odam:) I show you now what has been marked 

5 as 104, 105 and 106. Can you identify item 104, 

6 the invoice? 

7 A That is an invoice from my store. 

9 Q Can you state, if you know, who prepared that 

9 particular invoice? 

10 .1\ N.), sir • 

11 G. Youdon 1 tknow? 

12 A No, unless it was prepared by Lorenzo Garcia. 

13 !;;; lolho is that? 

14 A My uncle. 

15 Did he work at y o11r store? 

16 A Yes. 

17 What i.s the description Of work on there? 

18 A Rent on two D-3 tractors. 

19 Q. Is it your testimony this is the same job 

20 description for the same tractors we were referring 

21 to earlier this morning? 

22 A Yes. 

~ Q And the last item was the ch~ck, which is 106, 

24 in the amount of nine hundred ninety-eight dollars? 

~ A Yes, sir. 
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1905 

Q Is it made out to Benavides Implement and Hardware? 

2 A Yes. 

3 <.t Did you personally receive that check? 

4 A Yes. 

5 Q I show you E-107 and ask you if you can identify 

6 it? 

7 A It is an invoice made out to Duvel County, 

8 Precinct 2, in the amount of one thousand six 

9 dollars. 

10 Q What is that ,job description? 

11 A Rent on winch truck. 

12 Q What is the amount .:>f money there? 

13 A One thousand six dollars. 

14 Q Can you describe the winch truck? 

15 A I have a winch truck and 1 t was never rented to the 

16 county, because Ramiro kept the truck. 

17 Q What ls the amount of the invoice in 1071 

18 A One thousand six dollars. 

19 Q I show you E-109, the county check, and ask you if 

20 you received the original of that check? 

21 A Yes. 

~ Q What is the amount of that check? 

~ A One thousand six dollars. 

u Q What did you do with it? 

~ A It was deposited in the Rio Grande City bank. 

----*----------------------------------------------------------

II 
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1 ' Q I would like to show you what has been marked as 

2 110-B, A, and C, I dl.rect your attention to 110-A, 

3 can you descrl.be ~hat? 

4 A It is an invoice, 

s Q \o/hat is the job descrl.ptl.on there? 

6 A Equipment rental. 

7 ~ What equipment was intended to b• rented? 

8 A The store didn't have no eqt:l.pment to rent. 

9 <..\ I:' the equ1pnent referred t;o there, is that the 

10 D-8 Caterpillars or not? 

11 A I don't know, sir. 

12 ~ Your testimony is, there is no equipment rented 

13 to the county by your store? 

14 A No,sir. 

15 Q I show you Exhibl t 112, which I.e a check on the 

16 county of Duval to Benavides Implement and Hardwa 

17 Did you receive this check? 

18 II N o , s 1 :r , 

19 Q. N"'w, this ~heck here has an initl.al on it, what 

20 ts that? 

21 A Yes. 

22 Q What 1 s that in 1 t ia l? 

23 A L. 

24 Q Who ts that? 

25 A Lorenzo Garcia. 
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Q Can you state what happened to the check -- strike 

2 that. 

3 Mr. Lorenzo Garcia, does that indicate he 

4 received the check? 

5 MR. MITCHELL: Objection, hearsay. 

6 He has no personal knowledge. 

7 THE MASTER: The objection is overruled. 

8 MR. MITCHELL: Is that 112 that you are 

9 talking about? 

10 MR. ODAM: Yes, sir. 

11 Q (By Mr. Odam:) I no •. show you what has been marked 

12 as Exhibit E-113-B. Can you read the job 

13 description there? 

14 A Rental on equipment. 

IS Q. What is the amount of money there? 

16 A One thousand six dollars. 

17 Q And the rental on equipment, what equipment was 

18 rented to Duval County? 

19 A The store didn't have no equ.t;ment to rent to Duval 

20 County, sir. 

~ Q 1 believe with that particular invoice, there are 

22 some others? 

~ A Yes, there is one other invoice. 

24 Q. I show you E-115. Can you identlfv that 1.tem? 

~ A Yes, it is a check on Duval County to Benavides 
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Implement and Hardware in the amount of one 

2 thousand thirteen dollars thirty cents. 

3 Q Did you receive this check? 

4 A Yes, sir. 

5 Q What did you do with it? 

6 A Deposited it in the Rio Grande Bank, sir. 

7 Q. Was your testimony on this partiralar involce 

8 that there was no equipment rented to the county, 

9 either? 

W A No, sir, there was no equipment rented to the 

II county. 

12 Q. I show you What har been marked as E-116. Can you 

13 read this description? 

14 A Equipment rental. 

15 Q Can you identify who filled that ticket out? 

IS A Lorenzo Garc in. 

17 Q. What is the amount there? 

18 MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, vie object and 

19 move to strike. If he knows personally, he 

20 is able to identify and testify, but it needs 

21 support. 

22 MR. ODAM: Let me rephrase the question. 

23 Q What tlould be your personal knowledge that it was 

24 Lorenzo Gnrc ia? 

25 A He was work lng at the a tore at this time. 
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Q What would be your personal knowledge that it was 

2 Lorenzo Garcia? 

3 A He was working at the store at this time. 

4 Q WouJd there -- who would have access to those 

5 particular Benavides Implement and Hardware 

6 tnvoi~es a~ the store? 

7 A Lorenzo Garcia, 

8 MR. MITCHELL: Is the t the man that is 

9 dead? 

10 Q Is he deceased? 

II A Yes, 

12 <.t When did hP. die? 

13 A The latter part of 1973. 

14 Q In the job description on 116, what l.s that? 

15 fl C:quipment rental. 

16 r.;_ \-lh•-tt equipment was rented to the county there'' 

17 A N0 equlpmPnt, the store didn't heve equipment to 

18 r-7)r.t L·•the county or anybody else. 

19 Q 'rhe check I show you is marked as E-118 and is in 

20 the same amount as that invoice? 

21 A Yes. 

~ r Can you identify by the check who received that 

23 particular check? 

u A Lorenzo Garcia, 

25 Q What is the basis for your knowing that? 

-+1------------------------------------
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A It has his initial. 

2 Q What happened to the check after that? 

3 11 It was depcs!..ted in the First State Bank of San 

4 Diego. 

s ~ I show you what has been marked as 119-A and B. 

6 Can you read, starting with 119-A, what the job 

7 description ts there? 

8 A lilachinery :rental. 

9 Q, What is the amount of money 'l 

10 l\ One thousa,ld s txty dollars. 

11 Q. Is that also Benavillo;..S Implement and Hardware? 

12 A Yes. That was made by Lorenzo Garc 1.a. 

13 !;,J. And 119-B, what is the job description there? 

14 A Two rows of barbed wire or mesh wire. 

15 Q Now, on the machinery rental, what machinery did 

16 your company rent to the county pursuant to that 

17 invoice? 

18 A None, slr. 

19 Q In 119-B, did the store actually se 11 or rent 

20 barbed wire to the county? 

21 A I g ue s e s o , s ll' • 

22 (q( It is your testimony that on 119-B, that would be 

23 a legitimate invoice? 

24 A Yes. 

25 ~ And 119-A was for a mach in~ not rented? 

--1+-------------------------------·· ------
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A Yes. 

2 THE MASTER: Is this a good time for 

3 a break, Mr. Odam? 

4 MR. ODAM: Just one other question, 

5 I Your Honor. 

6 THE MJ\STER: All right, sir. 

7 ~ Finally, I show you what has beeP marked as 121. 

8 Can you ident.tfy that item? 

9 A Yes, a check on Duval County in the amount of 

10 one thousand ninety-six dollars fifty cents. 

11 Q C'w you idP-ntify wr1'"' happened to the check? 

12 A It; was dep,,sited i.n the Rio Grande Ci.ty bank. 

13 Q In the account of Benavi.des Implement and 

14 Hardware? 

IS A Yes. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

That completes this 

seriEs, Your Honor. 

THE MASTER: All right, sir. We will 

be if' recess until 10:20. 

(fhort recess taken.) 
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1912 

EXAMINATION CONTINUED 

2 

3 BY "fR. ODAM: 

4 
Q Mr. Coultng, I ~~ow you wh~t h~R b~en mark~d as 

5 
EYhtbtt 1'2 An~ ~sk you tf you cAn td~ntify that 

6 ltem? 

7 
A Tht~ t~ a ~tatement from Benavt~~s Im~tement end 

8 
Hsrdw&re Comn~ny to DuvAl County Prec•.nct No. 2. 

9 
Q And whAt I~ the d~te ther~? 

10 

II 
Q And whet fs the \ob descrlntion And Amount of 

12 
money? 

13 
A RentAl and on e~uinment fifteen hundred dollars. 

14 
•dr. 

15 Q And I note thAt this one for the first time, you 

16 
~terte~ rentin~ the e~ul~ment to the county for 

17 fifteen hundred doll~trs. Why cl'd yott be1!8Tl Around 

18 
thl~ tlmP to ~tart rent1n~ th~ ~~u~~ment for 

19 
fifteen hundred dollArs? 

20 A I lPH PVP t t was the -- sround the timP. th111t ht> 

21 
nurchasP.d nne or two root t)low~. 

22 Q And when you ~ay hP, who are you reft>rrtn~ to? 

23 
A 0. P. Carr1"1lo, !'lir. 

24 Q Whet is the pquioment th~tt wa!'l rented to the 

25 rounty for ftftt>en hundred dollars? 
---H------------------------------- ----- '" 
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A Th~r~ i~ no ~auinm~nt r~nt~d to th~ county, sir. 

2 Q Now, could you ~~nlain to the Court. in more 

3 d~t~il, about wh~n th~ ~bout th~ rnot nlows. 

4 Did you hav~ any conversation with Jud~e 0. P. 

5 C~rrillo concerning root nlows? 

6 A Ye~. sir, hP satd hP wa~ ~oin~ to buy two root 

7 nlOW!l, 

8 Q H~ safd he wa!l gofn~ to buy two rnot olowR? 

9 A Yes, sir. 

10 Q HP ~aid he wAR ~oin~ to buy two root olows and 

II what was suooosed to tAke nlace with resoect to 

12 the county? 

13 A I was !lUOoosed to increase t~e rent by five hun-

14 dred dollars or more, sir. 

15 Q And why were you sunnosed to increase the rent 

16 to the county? 

17 A So we could make thP oayments on thP root olow. 

~ Q So that was fncrPased --

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. MITCqELL: Pardon me, Jud~e. may I 

renuest, Your H1nor, that I -- that the 

auestlon~ may be in terms of whP.n the con-

versatbn occurred, at least the years. 

MR, ODAM: All ri~ht, let me --

MR, MITCHELL: He is ~re~ floatinp,. 

THE ~STER: A11 ri~ht, that's a 

---1-i----------------------------- --
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1914 

reasonable TPOUP.St. 

2 

3 

4 
0 Of 19711 

5 A Ye~. 

6 Q Whrn did your convrrsation with rPsorct to root 

7 nlowc:: occur? 

8 A It ws~ in thP 1attrr Dart of AuguRt or thr 

9 
m~dd1r of Srntember, sir, 1971. 

10 0 And thPn you ftllrd out this invoice for fifteen 

II hundrPd <'loll~trs1 

12 A I didn't fill out thi~ invoirr, sir. 

13 Q Who fillrd out t~ts invoice? 

14 

15 0 ThiP tc:: thP Mr. GarciA that workPd at your storr? 

16 

17 "'fR. MITCHELL: May I u:k 1.1 (!Urstion 

18 on voir d~rP, Your Honor? 

19 THE MASTF.R: Yes, c::ir. 

20 

21 

22 

23 
~IR DIRE EXAMINATION 

24 

25 
l3Y MR. MITCHELL: 

---tt--------------------------·-·-------
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7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1911_ 

0 Mr. CoultnF, dirl ynu see Lor~nr.o ft11 out those 

bt 11 in~s? 

A No, sir, he fillE'd out thE' bHl for Precinct Num-

bE'r ? . 

Q You didn't RE'e him ftll ft out? 

A No, s~r. 

MR. MITCHELL: WE> movr to ~trtke !t, 

Your Honor, ~nd WE' ob1ert to it. 

THE MASTER: If that Is thE' only basi8 

MR. ODAM: Your Hrmor, I will let it 

~tand for wh8t ft is, i_t is an invoice made 

rental of eoui~ment and I will let the 

tnvoice l'ltllnrl for whAt tt statE'!'! that i.t ls. 

I undE'r~tand your sustafnin~ thE' objection. 

EXAMINATION CONTINUED 

BY MR. ODAM: 

Q Can you ~tlltE' whether or not nf your own knowledge 

the county rE'nted the eaut,ment, Y·lUr :o:tort> rentP~ 

thP eouf~ment to th~munty t~11t is described on 

LIIATHAM & ASSOCI.~TES 
COUFIT REPORTEFI' 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 

CORPUS CHRISTl, TEX_A~~~t_ 



2 
A The ~tore dt~n't have any Pnufnment fnr rent, ~fr. 

3 
0 I td11 !"how you what h~t~ bren marked IHI Exam'lnPr 1 s 

4 
E~hibft t24, an~ ran you pfvp the datP of that 

5 
county check? 

6 
A ThP ?n~ ~ay of November, 1971, s~r. 

7 
Q And ran you tell hy looking at thr check wh~t 

8 
hanoened to i. t? 

9 
A It was de0osfte~ in the Rio Grande Bank, ~ir. 

10 
Q All right. 

II MR. ODAM: And nur~uant tn the stioula-

12 
tinn an~ this is true of a11 of these docu-

13 
ments ~eneral1y as the rernrd ~•11 indicatP, 

14 
Mr. Mef"k sttnulatf'd statement th~tt 122 was 

15 
cnntainf'~ in 1acket 121 and they are totally 

16 
fdentfftp~ both by thP rerord and by the 

17 

18 
Q E~htbft 125, what is the 1nb descriotfon nn 11~? 

19 

20 
Q And is that also an invoice on your stnre? 

21 

22 
Q C~tn you s~atP if you kno~ ~ho ftlled out this 

23 
tirkrt? 

24 
A Llkf" a~atn I said, Lorrn~o Garcia, sir. 

25 
Q All rhht. 

--4\----------------------------- -- ·- ----
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MR. MITCHELL: P~rdon m~. we would ltke 

2 

3 a nue~t{on on it, 

4 THE >.fASTER: All riJ>ht. 

5 

6 

7 

8 VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION 

9 ' 

BY ~. :'ofiTCHELL: 
10 

II Q Mr. Couli.n2, did you see Mr. CarC'h fill it nut? 

12 A No, !II i.r. 

13 MR. MITCHELL: We obi f>Ct and movP to 

14 !'ltrikr it, i.t would be no "Pr~on11l knowledl!e 

IS 

16 THE MASTER: w .. tl, how do youmnw? 

17 A Bpc~tusP hP was workin~ for me at t~e !~~tore, str. 

18 MR. MITCHELL: Well, Your H~nor, I 

19 don't oh1ect, Your Honor -- I mPan if he 

20 know~. thPrP tR other mPthods of authenti-

21 rat fn~. 

22 THE MASTER: That i.s cnrrPC't, an~ I 

23 

24 you and thP oh1ectfon i.s !'!U!t~tined at this 

25 time, 
--1+---------------------------- -·· ·-
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24 

25 

1919 

A 

Q And whPn you ore~~red this tnvnicP, can you statP, 

if you know, wh~t tract~r you would b~ rPferrin~ 

A W~ll, the store had no tractor. WP had to be 

~pf~rrin~ to the DR tractor that were ourchased 

by o. P., :rdr. 

MR. MITCHELL: E~cuse m~. Your Honor, 

may I ~sk w~at dat~ that ~e is referrin~ 

to now, &jlain? 

Q Wh~t is thE' d~te on this i.nvoice? 

A DecPmber the ~rd, 1971. 

MR. MITCHELL: We are ~oing to ob_1 ect 

written contract dated Decf'mb~r of 7? wh~re 

Mr. Coul inP.: b!luJ,!ht, for thP Benl'lvidef! Imole-

m~nt and Hardware, tw!l tractors. 

MR. ODAM: What is --

MR. MITCHF.LL: And, of course, his 

tf'sttmony f.s contrary to thetr own recordA 

tion of the oarolf' or best evtdencf' TUlf', 

~hirh fs the contract and the oarolf' f'VI-

d.-nc~ rulP, 

THE MASTER: The ob1ectlon Is overruled. 
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Q (By Mr. Od~m:) Can you i~Pntify itPm 1~0? 

2 A YP~, str, it is a chPck for e thousand dollar~ 

3 
made ~ayable to the Benavide~ Imolement and Hard-

4 
~arP Com~any and it was deoo~ite~ in the First 

5 
StatP Bank of San D{e~o. 

6 Q Can you identify ftPm 111? 

7 A YP~, ~ir, It fs an invoice from my -- from 8ena-

8 vtde~ Imdement and Hardware Comoany dated Decem-

9 hpr the ?1st to Duval County, Precinct Number ?. 

10 Q And what ~~ the 1ob dPscriottnn therP? 

II 
A RPnt on two cat~. 

12 Q What h thP datP therP? 

13 
A DPcember thP 2l~t. 1973. 

14 Q And ~hat was the date on thP tnvofce marke~ 

15 12q that you ftllPd out? 

16 

17 0 So you wPrP renttn~ the CatProillar~. billin~ 

18 
thP ~ounty two time~ that month for the Cater-

19 

20 A Well, on this one, I bPlievP it was oaid on 

21 

22 
January, I don't know. 

23 Q WPll, WP wfll ~f't to that. C~tn ynu tell by mkinp 

24 
at 1,1 who filtPd it out? 

25 
A I flllPd it nut, ~fr. 

--tt-----------------------------
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2 

3 

4 I 

6 

7 

8 

I 

9 !I 
10 

II 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

23 

24 

I 

A R~nt on twn ret~. 

0 An~ th~ amount of mnn~y? 

nfnPty doll11r~. 

0 And why did you nut et~ht~~n hundr~d and nfn~ty 

dnllar-? 

A I mad~ th1~ nut tn cover thP navmentq nf the 

tr11ctor 11nd thP rnot ~low~. ~fr. 

the Precfnct Numbpr 2? 

A r ~fdn't hiiVP no Cllterntllar~. It WIIR thP 

CatPrnfllarq on 0. P. 1 q ranch, qfr. 

A Ypq, s{r, ft fq a check for ffftePn hundre~ 

dnllar!!. It was de~oq{ted in thP Rto Grande 

Bank, t~lr. 

Item 114, can you de~cribe that 

A Ye,., q{r, it is 11nother invoice mad~ on January 

the 12th, 1974, fnr -- to Duval County Precinct 2, 

rent on tvn tractnrR for fifteen hundred dollars 

CHATHAM & ASSOCL .. TfS 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY SANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl. TEXAS 78401 



1922 

~tnd I orPollrE'd thi" qt«P.mE'nt, too, :o; 'l.r. 

2 

3 PrPctnct Number 1? 

4 

5 Q Nnw, ~~~111n, 'l.t wa!l your eltrltE'r te:o;timony, if 

6 you c11n rE'c~t11 th~tt, 8R tn why tn{tfally you lirE' 

7 

8 

9 A WE'll, ! wa!l tnld, 0. P. told mE' that hE' had pur-

10 cha:o;Pd two tr~tctorl'l and l~tter on he ourchased two 

II root ~1owl'l ~tnd that the county would oay forthe 

12 rPnt to Plains Machinery. 

13 Q And could you fdentffy item 116 and the date on 

14 thltt check? 

IS A FPbruary thP 2Pth, 1974, for fffteen hundred 

16 

17 Grande C'l.ty B1tnk, q{r, 

18 Q And a~ain, {f you could refre!lh the record, why 

19 was it -- why were 1tll of the~e check~ deoosited 

20 in the Rio Grande City Bank? 

21 A The account fn Rto Grande City wits ort~tnslly set 

22 uo for the oayment of the tractnrF that -- could 

23 be made from checks that we receive~ from Duval 

24 : 
County, !dr, 

25 0 And cltn you identify item 1~7 and the date therpon?j 

--~--------------------------------------------------
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A F~bru~ry th~ 2'-nd, 1974, Duv~l County Pr~cinct 

Numbf'r 1 eal.,mf"nt rPntl'tl fiftf"en hunc'lred Clollars. 

3 

4 A F~brul'try 22nd, 1974. 

5 Q And r~n you fd~ntlfy thP ftpm 119? 

6 A Y~~. qfr. It •~ l't chf'ck for flftpen hundrf"d 

7 doll~~tr!'l madE' on the l~th d1.1y of r'.!lrch, 1974, to 

8 Bf'nl'tvtdeR ImDlPmPnt and Hardwl'tre Comnany and it 

9 was deooPft~d at Rio Grande City B1.1nk, ~fr, 

10 Q C111n I l!lsk you, tf you wU.l, I will !':how you what 

II ha~ been m1.1rked, the~P hl!lv~ not hPen introduced 

12 Into ~vid~nce as yPt, items 140 throu~h 150 A and B 

13 and I!IRk for you to take a moment to look and 

14 pyamine thf'SP inRtrument~ and thPn I'll hav~ some 

15 nu~stfons for you on those. 

16 A Throu~h ~h~t number do you want mE' to look to, 

17 !'li r? 

18 Q Throu~h thf> f'nti rf' R tack. 

19 A All riJ:!;ht. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

(DtscusRlon off thP record.) 

Q Havf> you look~d l!lt 811 thP itE'mS r just RI!IVE' you, 

>.fr. CoulinJ!'? 

A Yf'R, sir. 

Q For purposE'~ of idf'ntfftcatinn, now that you havP 
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looke~ at ~11 of them, can you tdenttfy for the 

2 recorrl what thP~P are, not Item by item, but 1ust 

3 

4 A They arP all checks madP out of the First St~te 

s B~nk and Tru~t Comoany of Rln Grande City from 

6 the BPnavides Imolement and Hardware Comoany to 

7 P1ainA Machinery for oayment of ~~chinery and 

8 tractors and one is made to 8, D. Hall for rental 

9 on 11 root olow. 

10 0 And t~e chPcks that you are lookin~ at, on what 

II 

12 A First State Bank and Trust Comoany of Rio Grande 

13 Ci.ty. 

14 0 And fA that thP b~nk tn t~e account to whtch you 

15 

16 A Ye~. •dr. 

17 0 And the chPcks that you havP th~re, did you stgn 

18 thosp chf'cks? 

19 

20 Q Now, those that you have there arf' stmoly ~ero~ 

21 

22 A Yes, !'li.r. 

23 Q Do ynu know ~hPre the ort~tnsl cooies of thoAe 

24 

25 A No, !llfr. 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. ODAM: Exhibits 140 through 150, 

150-A and D are photostatic copies of the 

checks and we would offer these in evidence 

at this time. 

MR. MITCHELL: In view of the fact we 

have had no opportunity to examine them, may 

we have a few minutes to do so? 

THE MASTER: Well, yes, except I had 

rather you do that at a recess. 

~re you through with this witness, 

Mr. Odam? 

MR. ODAM: No, sir. 

THE MASTER: Why don •t you examine 

them and then I will reserve a ruling on that 

MR. MITCHELL: All right, sir. 

THE MASTER: You can at this time glance 

at them while the examination is going on. 

MR. MITCHELL: Well, Judge, the fact 

remains that some of them are completely 

obliterated. For example, this one here. 

THE MASTER: I see. Off the record. 

(Discussion off the record.) 

MR. MITCHELL: Judge Meyers, I can 

level the objection that I have with the 
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understanding I would like to have an 

2 opportunity to make a detailed examination, 

3 but I have not had an opportunity to see 

4 them. Also, I have an objection to them as 

5 to hearsay to Judge Carrillo and beyond the 

6 formal notice and amended notice and also 

7 it relates to non-judicial conduct, and not 

8 the best evidence and not properly 

9 authenticated. Each and every one, 140 

10 through and including 150-A and B, and for 

11 what it is wo~ ':h, and I have never heard 

12 of this objection before, but some of them 

13 are in such a state of defacement and 

14 obliteration that they could be misleading. 

15 THE MASTER: I think that goes to the 

16 weight, but I think you need to expound on 

17 the unavailability of the originals, Mr. 

18 Odam. 

19 Q (By Mr. Odam:) Mr. Couling, what I have shown you 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

here briefly are copies that were obtained from the 

bank themselves. It was your statement earlier, 

with respect to the original copies -- perhaps 

we should start with that. 

Do you know where the original checks are of 

these bank copies? 
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A No, sir, I believe those particular checks were 

2 at the store when Mr. Garcia passed away and I 

3 could not find the box where he kept all those 

4 checks. 

s Q Would these be all of the checks or copies of the 

6 checks made to Plains Machinery or would there be 

7 others? 

8 A There would be others. 

9 Q But you have made a search for the original checks 

10 

11 

12 

13. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

themselves? 

A Yes. 

Q And you have been unable to find them? 

A No, sir, I have not found them. 

THE MASTER: Have you looked at each 

one of these checks? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: And these are checks you 

signed? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: I overrule the objection. 

on 

MR. MITCHELL: May I have 

voir dire? 

THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

CIIATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
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I ,. VOIR DIRE EXAMIKATION 
I 2 I 

3 
IY MR, MITCHELL: 

• Q Those checks are on the Rio Grande bank? 

s A Yes. 

6 Q And that ia the bank account you opened up, by 

7 your sworn testimony? 

8 A No, sir, I opened it up attar o. P, brought me 

9 Q You opened the account by signing a signature 

10 card and you drew on the account? 

11 A Yes,sir. 

12 Q Nobody else drew on the account but you? 

13 A Ro, sir, 

It Q The checks were returned to the Benavides 

IS Implement and Hardware Store address? 

16 A Yes. 

17 Q And the original of those checks would have been 

u sent by the bank at the end of the month along 

19 with the statements to the Benavides Implement 

20 and Hardware Store? 

21 A Rot every month. They mailed a statement every 

22 two or three months. 

a Q What I meant was, you had custody of the originals, 

u because the bank sent them to you or to your 

-=~• address? 
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A Yes, and sometimes Lorenzo Garcia picked up the 

2 mail. 

3 Q He was your employee? 

c A Yes. 

5 Q And when was the last time you saw the original 

6 of the bank checks? 

1 A When he and I prepared the tax rrturn in 1973 or 

8 '74 before he passed away. 4e kept them all and 

9 I could not find them. 

10 Q The ones that are marked 140 through 150-A and B, 

11 where did they come ~rom? Could you tell us, 

12 please? 

13 A From the Rio Grande City bank. 

14 Q Wh.e re did you ge t them? 

15 A I don •t know where they got them. 

~ Q Who got them? 

11 A I don't know if he was an Attorney General or not. 

18 They asked me and I told them I didn't have the 

19 originals and they said they could get copies. 

~ Q When was the first time you saw Exhibits 140 

21 through 150-A and B? 

~ A About six or eight weeks ago, sir. 

~ Q So that when counsel asked you if there were 

24 other checks payable to Plains MaC'hinery, you 

would not know because the Attorney General 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

supervised the getting of them? 

A I was talking about the o~iginal checks, sir. 

Q Did you see the original checks? 

A When I made income tax, yes, sir. 

Q When was the last time you saw the originals? 

A I don't know, sir, I don•t recall. 

Q And is your store, Benavides Implument and Hardware 

Store, is it still there in Benavides? 

THE MASTER: I believe you have 

exceeded the scope of voir dire with that 

question. 

MR. MITCHELL: Well, I still reassert 

the objections previously leveled at these 

exhibits and in addition, now that they are 

selected now, it appears that way, and 

without a predicate or statements tendering 

their offer, and the reason for this 

selectivity, we would object to them on the 

grounds of hearsay insofar as they are 

introduced for the ultimate fact. 

THE MASTER: The objection is overruled 

and they are admitted, Exhibits E-140 through 

150, A and B. 
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FUBTHER EXAMINATION 

2 

BY MR, ODAM: 
3 

4 Q We have looked at checks from Duval County and 

5 invoices and the checks you made out to Plains 

6 Machinery. I would like for you, at this time, 

7 to summarize in your own words ttts entire 

8 transaction, if you would, from what Judge 0, P. 

9 Carrillo first said to you about the tractors, 

10 all of the way through and to where we are now. 

II MR. MITC!~'LL: Your Honor, that is 

12 unnecessary repetition and we will object 

13 to it unless the witness can -- well, it 

14 is not adding anything new. There 1B no 

IS way tor me to object to this testimony 

16 as to a precluded waiver. 

17 MR. ODAM: This witness has testified 

18 now for a number of hours and the basis of 

19 the items that I have gone through with him. 

20 I think it would be bl!lneficial to the Court 

21 if we could summarize --

THE MASTER: I overrule the objection. 

~ Q (By Mr. Odam:) I will restate the question. 

25 

That is,I am asking you to summarize, from 

the time Judge 0, P. Carrillo said something to 
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you about tractors, all the way up to where we are 

2 now with the admission of these checks. 

3 MR. MITCHELL: There 1s no way I can 

4 cross-examine or 

5 THE MASTER: You said that earlier and 

6 I have overruled it. 

7 Q (By Mr. Odam:) You may continue. 

8 A :::>. P. Carrillo came to m.y office and said he was 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

going to purchase tractors from Plains Machinery 

and s~ them to my office with a contract on the 

rental-purchase agr~;.;; 1ent~ which the papers were 

brought by a man from Plains Machinery to my 

office. I don't recall if I signed that paper that 

day or not and I don't remember if he picked them 

up or I brought them back to Corpus. He said I 

would get money from Duval County, Precinct 2, 

to pay for the tractors. He came later -- o. P. 

Carrillo came later and said he had arranged to 

buy two root plows from B. D. Holt and they would 

be paid tor in the same way. 

Before that time, he suggested that I open an 

account in the Rio Grande Oity bank to make 

payments from that bank for the equipment purchased 

from Plains Machinery and B. D. Holt. 

25 Q At any time, did o. P. Carrillo 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
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1 ~ 

MR. MITCHELL: May I move for a 

2 mistrial on the grounds of denial of 

3 rights of my client to cross-examine and 

4 the right to confrontation and right of 

5 due process in this proceeding by the 

6 method of examination of this witness. 

7 THE MASTER: It is denied. 

8 Q (By Mr. Odam:) Mr. Couling, at any time, did 

9 Judge o. P. Carrillo make deposits into the Rio 

10 Grande City bank account? 

11 A Yes, he gave me che~...:s. 

12 Q What were those checks in the amount of? 

13 A From five hundred dollars up to two thousand 

14 dollars to make up the diftrence on the payments 

15 of the tractors and root plows. 

16 Q Did he make a statement to you at that time that 

17 this was in payment of those tractors and root 

18 plows, the difference in that? 

19 A Yes. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. MITCHELL: There is no way to 

object with the question including a time 

frame. 

THE MASTER: I think a time frame is 

desirable. A lawyer can present a witnaa 

as he wishes to present him and you have ful 
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I I right to cross-examination. 

2 MR. MITCHELL: As the court knows, if 

3 your head is cut off and laying on the tloor, 

4 it doesn•t do any good to cross-examine. 

5 All I am asking is if counsel would pose the 

6 question within a given transaction so I can 

7 have an opportunity to know the time frame 

8 in advance. 

9 THE MASTER: You may proceed. I think 

10 time is important. 

11 MR. ODAM: I agree, Your Honor. 

12 Q (By Mr. Odam:) The check statements were made to 

13 you and the checks were given. Can you pin these 

14 down as to time and when Judge Carrillo would give 

15 you a check? Do you recall when the first check 

16 was given to you by o. P. Carrillo? 

17 A It has to be when we made the first payment to 

18 Plains Machinery. 

19 MR. MITCHELL: That is speculation. 

20 THE MASTER: The objection is overruled. 

u Q When would it be when the first payment was? 

22 A I had to send the money to Plains Machinery and 

had to have the money. 

H Q A portion of the money was in he bank account and 

Judge Carrillo would give you the balance? 
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A Yes. 

2 Q Can you state, if' you know, why you were not 

3 getting f'rom the county the full amount of money 

for payments on the Caterpilla~ 

5 MR. MITCHELL: That would call for 

6 hearsay and we object. 

7 THE MASTER: It depends on the basis 

8 of his knowledge. 

9 THE WITNESS: No, sir, I don•t know, 

10 sir. 

11 Q You don't know? 

12 A N~, sir. 

13 Q So Judge Carrillo would give you a check, but 

14 again,can you recall the amounts ot money on those 

15 checks he gave to you? 

16 A Five hundred dollars to a thousand or maybe two 

17 thousand, and sometimes he gave me a blank check 

18 to fill out the amounts needed. 

~ Q Do you recall, around the time the conversation was 

21 

with respect to the purchase of the root plows, 

do you recall that time? 

22 A I don't remember the dates. 

2:1' Q Do you recall the year? 

U A Well, I would be guessing. 

MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me, we would 
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3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

Q 

object. 

----------- ----l-9~6- ~ 

! 

THE MASTER: Yes, don't guess. You can 

give your best recollection or best 

estimate. 

THE WITNESS: The only way I could 

answer that is by seeing the first contract 

that was signed on them. 

MR. ODAM: Woul! yc-u mark this. 

(The above-mentioned document was 

marked as Examiner's Exhibit 161 for 

identification.) 

MR. MITCHELL: Pardon me, I have a gap 

here of about ten exhibits. 

THE MASTER: 159 is the finandng 

statement on the tractor. 160 is the origina~ 
lease agreement on the two tractors and I had 

overlooked 160 myself. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, I was thrown off 

because 140 to 150 was a file of all of these 

right here. 

THE MASTER: Yes. 

MR. MITCHELL: All right. I now have tt 

straight. 

(By Mr. Odam:) I show you what has been marked as 
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E-161 and ask you if you can identify this item? 

2 A Yes, sir, this is a bill from B. D. Holt Company 

3 for one root plow in the amount or five thousand 

4 seven hundred eighty dollars. 

s Q What is the date of this contract? 

6 A February 6th, 1973. 

7 Q Would it be, if you know of your own knowledge, 

8 would it be around that date a conversation was 

9 had in February, 1973, about the root plows? 

10 A On the root plows? 

11 Q Yes, sir. 

12 A It probably was a few weeks before. 

13 Q And who is the purchaser of these root plows? 

14 A Benevides Implement and Hardware, verified bJ 

15 o. P. Carrillo. 

16 Q Is that verified or verbal? 

n A Verbal by o. P. Carrillo. 

18 MR. ODAM: We offer in evidence E-161. 

19 MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, may I ask the 

20 witness a question on voir dire? 

21 THE MASTER: Yes. 

22 

23 

24 VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION 

~ BY MR. MITCHELL: 
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I 
I I 

I 
2 

3 

4 

Q 

A 

Q 

Your signature doesn't appear on this at all? 

No, sir. 

And you were not there at the tlme this was 

executed? 

~38 __ + 
I 
I 

I 
I 

5 A No, sir. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

MR. MITCHELL: Well, we will object ~n 

improper authentication and it would be 

hearsay along with the other standing 

objections we have. 

THE MASTER: Let me see it. 

In t~is state o~ the record, the 

objection is sustained. 

MR. ODAM: If we could, Your Honor, at 

this point simply offer it on a bill or 

exception for the light of the last question 

as to pinpoint a date with respect to a 

contract and then I will go back and 

au then tica te it. 

THE MASTER: It becomes your bill. 

Your of~er is not admitted and it is the bill 

MR. ODAM: All right, sir. 
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FURTHER EXAMINATION 

2 
BY MR. ODAM: 

3 

4 Q Now, Mr. Couling, your Benavides Implement and 

s Hardware Company, does it still have a contract 

6 with Plains Machinery on these two Caterpillars? 

7 A No, sir. 

8 Q Do you recall a date as to when you no longer had 

9 a contract on the Caterpillars? 

10 A It was sometime in 1974, sir. 

1i Q I show you what hac ..,een marked and introduced 

12 into evidence as E-160. Oan you identify what this 

13 item is? 

14 A This is an agreement on the equipment to Benavides 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

Implement and Hardware. 

Q Is this on the Caterpillars? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Do you recognize, on this second page of that, as 

being your signature on the contract? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And this is the contract that you were referring 

to earlier in your testimony when somebody brought 

over a contract to you? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q I show you what has been marked as Respondent's 
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---l 
I 

2 I 

Exhibit R-50. Now, your testimony was, as to what 

point in time, if you know, when the Benavides 

3 Implement and Hardware ceased making payments and 

4 ceased ownership of the Caterpillars in question? 

s A It has two dates here, sir. It is a date in 1974 

6 and '75. 

7 Q What is the first date referred tc there? 

8 A May,l974, sir. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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1 al11 

A At 0. P. 's ranch. 

2 Q Dtd you see th~m at any ooint worktn~ other than 

3 on Jud~~ Carrillo'~ ranch? 

4 A No, str. 

5 Q Pursuant to thP invotces you R~nt into thP county, 

6 dtd you ~ver -- w~re those CatProi1lars evPr 

7 actually rente~ to the county of Duval? 

B A No, !d.r. 

9 Q Wh~n you r~nt~d thP Cateroillars to th~ county of 

10 Duval, did you ~ver have emoloyees work those 

11 Cater0 illars for th~ county of Duval? 

12 A Not that I know, str, no, str. 

~ Q All rtght. 

14 
(Di~c Rston off the record.) 

15 

16 Q Mr. Coultn~. you teRtified wtth referenc~ to 

17 some root olows, dfd you ever have any tyo~ of 

18 rental contract or wrttten cortract of any sort 

19 with Jud~e o. P. Carrillo with resoect to thosP 

20 root olows? 

21 A Not betwe•n Mr. C~trrillo and myRelf, so, str. 

~ Q Well, I takP tt by your answer that there -- that 

23 there was an a~reement, would that be one with 

24 B. D. H'llt? 

~ A Yes, sir. 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

I' 6 
I 
I 

1 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

actually ~vPr ~~e the Cater~tllers we ere talk• 

i.n~ about? 

A Yee, ~tr. 

Q And where did you see those Ceteroillers? 

A At Borjas Ranch, which is Mr. 0. P. Carrillo's 

ranch. 

Q And when you sew them on the BorJAS Ranch, were 

they standin~ still or were thPy bein~ worke~? 

A I ~aw them once whPn they were working end once 

Q Who did you see rPoetrin~ the vehicles? 

A Crisoforo B. Chaoe. 

Q And who di~ you SPe worktn~ the machinerv? 

A At that time, Fidel was there heloln~ him re~air 

the machinery. 

Q This would be F~l 

A S~~tenz. 

Q And thf" Cateroill8rs ln OUPstton, would these 

be the Cateroill8rs that werP theoretically rente~ 

to thE' county? 

A YE>s, sir. 

Q Did you ever actually see the Cater~lllars doin~ 

any more work for the county? 

A I saw them off the road working. yes. sir. 

Q And where did you see thosP workin~? 
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like wp ha~been doin~ in the oaAt year because 

2 
'ft was co!'!tfnJZ: -- it was FolnJZ to cost me money. 

3 
Q And did you have any conversation wfth 0. P. 

4 
Carrillo? 

s A No, !'lir. 

6 Q Did you at that time cease makin~ your invoices 

7 then to the county? 

8 A YeR, sir. 

9 Q And did you at that ttme cpase makin~ your oayment 

10 to Plains Machinery? 

11 A YeP::, str. 

12 Q So, for a period of ttmP around that point, you 

13 defaulted on thP payment? 

14 A Yes, !!ir. 

15 Q Mr. Mitchell asked you a ~uestton about the setttn~ 

16 up of the Rio Grande City account. Could you des-

17 crtbe -- dfd you ~o over and set up the account 

18 at the Rio Grande City Bank? 

19 A No, p:;tr. 

20 Q How was that account set up? 

21 A 0. P. came by and told me he had made arran~ements 

22 for thP bank and he brou~ht me a !'!{~nature card 

23 which I SiJZned and maHed b~tck to the bank. 

24 Q Now, theRe two Caterpillars, vehicles we have 

been talkin~ about, pieces of enuioment, did you 

----4r-------------------------------------------------------~-

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE"' GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl. TEXAS 7840, \ 



Q For th@ stor~? 

2 A Ytts, :o~tr. 

3 Q And so, you arp recpfvln~ -- dfd you have a 

4 conver~ation wtth~o~le from the I.R.S., or wh•t 

5 did you receivtt from thtt I.R.S.? 

6 A I r@crlved a statement, sir. 

7 Q For business with res~ect to your :'!tore? 

8 A Ytts, sir. 

9 Q Alon~ the lines of th~ business we hav~ been 

10 referrtn~ to fn these --

ll A Yes, sir. 

U Q In this testimony? 

13 A "'s , sir. 

U Q At this ~oint in time, you received those state-

15 mttnm, what «Hd you do havtn~ rttceived those statP-

16 ments? 

17 A I talked to Rami.ro Cur!.llo and I needed some monpy 

18 to nay the income ta~ and he just didn't say any-

19 thi.ng. 

20 Q Ramf.ro? 

fl A Yes, sir. 

~ Q And D. C. Chana? 

.~ Q And what did you say to them, if you recall? 

~ A I said I couldn't afford to do any more transac~ions 
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Q Now, I show you the second pa~e of what has been 

marked R-50 and ask if you can identify the name 

of the debtor on here. 

A 0. P. Carillo, ~•r. 

Q And I believe you have ~revfously identified his 

qf~nature on the document? 

A Yes, <=ir. 

0 Did you testftY that would be his si~nature? 

A Yf's, !!ir. 

Q Now, from thPse two items, E-160 and R-50, I take 

lt the Catf'r,illar" chan~ed ownershi, around that 

, .. rtod of tim• of May 2nd, 1974, is that correct? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Why di.d thf' ownershin chanJ!:E' at that time, if 

you know, from Benavides Im~lement and Hardware 

to 0. P. Carrillo? 

A Well, ft was around the time that 1 had they 

were sending statements from the I.R.S. to nay 

'f.ncome tax and I could not afford to J!:O into df'bt 

like I had ~one before, when I was makinJ~; no 

~rofit from those rental e«tu'f.nment, sir. 

Q Income tax, ~Prsonal income tax? 

A YE"s, !'lir. 

A On the store. 
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Q 

-----

Was there any other agreement that you know of 

betwepn Jud~P 0. P. Carrillo and anyone else 

wit~ rP~oect to the root 0 lows? 

19461 

A No, ~ir, I don't know, sir. 

Q And I would a~k you the same nupstion with 

resoect to the Cateroillars, did Jud~e Carrillo 

havP any tyne of written contracc with you other 

then the two documents which are not -- those 

that are with Plains, did Jud~e Carrillo hav~ 

any contract with you with resnect to those Cater-

oilt&rs? 

A No, !I tr. 

Q W&s this -- I t&ke it then that the -- any comment 

with resoect to the root olnws or the C&teroillars 

between you &nd 0. P. Carrillo were oral comments 

~uch •~ you h~ve described thus f&r tod&y? 

0 And now did you ever h&ve a -- you Rtated that 

Ramtro Carrillo, and you were nartners and set 

uo the Ben&vtdes Imolement and H&rdware Store, 

h th& t correct? 

A Yes, sir, he waP a silent oartnPr, yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: We er.- ~ninJ?: to ob1ect, 

Your Honor, to that testimony on the Rrounds 

0revf.ously stated .n~ tn ordf'r not to w&ivf' I 
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2 [! n•r or nor ond 

wh~t~~r he wa~ a Ailent oert-
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move to Atrtk~ it, 

THE MASTER: Oveorrul~~. 

Q You and Remiro Carrillo we-re "artnerA tn setttng 

uo the Benavid~!ll Imolf'ment end Hardware, df_d you 

evf'r hav~ any conversation wtth Ramiro Carrillo 

with resoert to thp payment of your incom~ tax 

on all of this business that we hav~ been talking 

about this morning? 

A Yell, !': ir. 

Q And what was that? 

A He never did answer anything about 4t, sir. 

Q Henever made any stabment to you? 

A No, t~~ir. 

Q What statement did you make to him? 

A I asked him if I needed some mon~y to oay income 

tax for all the money that was being naid to 

their store and rental re~uioment? 

A How much income taT w~re you asked to pay on this? 

A On two or three yPars, i_ t amounted to Aixty-Aeven 

or sev~nty thou~and dollars, Air. 

Q On all of this business that we have be~n 

that you havP been testifying tn thus far today? 

A Ye11, ~tr. 

Q Did Ramiro Carrillo ever lPase any of the ~quipm~nt 
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that wa~ bou~ht by Benavides Imnlement and 

Har~ware to your knowled~e? 

A Not that I know, no, si.r. 

Q Now, we have been discusstn~ some e~uinment rental~ 

and then Jud~e 0. P. Carrillo's eQuiument rental, 

the B. D. Holt, the root nlows, are there any 

other -- is there any other documentation that 

you know of sunnortive of the~e items into Bene-

A I don't know, sir. 

Q All rt~ht. 

MR. ODAM: Pass the witness. 

MR. MITCHELL: Your H~nor, I don't know 

what the Court's desires are. Quite frankly, 

I would ttke to have an onuortunity to nrenare 

for the cross-e~aminatton of this witness 

and I understand that is the last witness 

that the Examiner has. 

MR. ODAM: ~. sir, the only other 

one woul~ be on the authentication of this 

contract with B. D. Holt and it mt~ht be 

that that would come uu throu~h your own 

testimony, I don't know. That woul~ be 

the only other one. That would just be 

an authent~catln~ witness, ~omeone here in 
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Cor,us Chrtl'lt'f. 

THE MASTER: W~tl, when you say time, 

how much ttme? 

MR. MITCHELL: Well, I noticed we are 

roughly an hour and a half to -- to ad1ourn• 

ment time, Your Honor, and I -- I could 

,erha,s start on some facet of the e~amina• 

tton with the statement to the Court that I 

Sl)ectftc!ll of his testimony. 

THE MASTER: W~11, my Guestton was 

broader than that. Do you want to take a 

break now to organize what I will, for a 

better word, describe as your ,enerat and 

l'reltmlnary and non•Sl)eclftc cross-e~aminat1on, 

and then that urobably will take us to near 

onP o'clock. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, Your Honor. 

THE MASTER: And then break until the 

week of the l~~:t. 

MR, MITCHELL: 18, Your Honor, either 

that, Jud~e, tn vtew of the fact that it 

would takP some time to ~et organized for 

any cross·e~amtnation, I waR wondering if 

the Court would entertain a motion to adjourn 
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as ~reviou~ly outline~. 

THE MASTER: Well, let me ask you, Mr. 

Odam, do you think between now end onP. 

o'clock you could ~et somebody from Holt 

over ht>re? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, ~ir, I certainly would 

try to run somebody down fr0m B. D. Holt. 

I ean ~o out nov end ~et someone on the 

~bone. 

THE MASTER: LPt's nee if we recess for 

that, that would be your lest witness, 

wouldn't it, with the exce~tion of the 

cross·e~amination end redirect of this wit-

ness. 

MR. MITCHELL: John, the Court is 

address tng you. 

MR. ODAM: 1B, sir. 

MR. FLUSCHE: We might have one or 

two authenticating witnesses. We have to 

~o through our Exhibits --

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir, thP. only reason 

I hesitatE', --

THE MASTER: I'm not ~tnnin~ you down, 

we will do tt --

MR. ODAM: I don't have any in mind. 
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THE MASTER: W•ll, do I ~·t the im'Pres-

ston that tt would be to everybody's benefit 

to break at this time, ~ive you time to do 

whatever additional work you want to do, 

Mr. Mitchell? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: And ~ive you time to 

check your notes to see what you want to 

do? 

MR. MITCHELL: We would take U'P, Your 

Honor, WP would ue 'j)reoared to take up with 

this eross·e~amination and go on and 'Present 

our case when we recnvene. 

THE MASTER: You mean reconvene Monday 

morning, the 1st of DeePmber? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, str. 

THE MASTER: You are ready to cross-

examine? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: And then out on any addi-

tional •uthentieating brief witnesses that 

you want? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: I SU'P'POSe in reality, Mr. 

Mitchell, you could move your case along by 
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~ettin~ or~anlzed next week? 

MR. MITCHELL: YP.s, sir, I could. I 

could be honest with the Court, of course, 

I could flim-flam around for an hour on 

this witness. 

THE MASTER: I know you could do that, 

I certainly know you could do that. 

MR. MITCHELL: But I submit, Jud~e, 

that we could take u~ with the cross•examina-

tion and be ~re~ared to ~o forward with thP 

balance of the ~Jse. 

I don't know whethPr I want that remark 

of the Court In the record of not, but I 

invited it. 

And a~aln, Jud!'te Meyers, f.f the Court 

wants me to ~roceed, I can. I .1ust think 

that it would be a ~reater -- better flow 

and much more continuity, I would like to 

know ~hether or not the Examiner Is finished 

and I am !'tOinv. to be faced with new test!• 

mony and tf need be, I wfll waive the riRht 

to call him back and let him ~roeeed. 

MR. ODAM: No, I don't know of anyth:f.n!'t 

exceot this authenticatin~ witness on this 

B. D. Holt, unless we nave .1ust overlooked 
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~ometh{n~ thr last three weeks, \ 

THE MASTER: Well, Mr. Mitchell, you 

c~n a~nrectatP in a case of this •• 

MR. MITCHELL: I understand, 

THE MASTER: This detail, that he might 

come uo wtth nne or two more witnesses after 

It weeks' delay. 

MR. MITCHELL: I understand that, Jud~e. 

THE MASTER: He is tellin~ you he 

hasn't ~ot much left now, if anythin~. but 

he ts not ~rPoared •• he can't rest now 

because you haven't finished with thts crnss-

examination. Somethfn~ you mi~ht do on 

cross•elfamination might give rise to otber 

witne~ses. 

MR. MITCHELL: I understand. Ho~efully, 

it does. 

THE MA STER: So I will recess now, we 

have ~ot only two days next week anyhow, 

unle8s we dec-fded to work Friday and that 

sure does ~olit things u~. 

MR, MITCHELL: And as the Court has 

been made aware, we do h~ve our sentenein~ 

on Monday: Jud~e. 

THE MASTER: Oh, yes, and it, I guess, 
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conceivably could ~o over into Tuesday. I 
Do you have any ~roblem with recessing now, 

Mr. Pipkin? 

MR. PIPKIN: I would like to consult 

a moment ~ith the Examiners. 

MR. ODAM: The only ftuestion I have, 

Jud~e --

THE MASTER: Lets recess, then, until 

eleven twenty-five and you all consult and 

decide what you want to do. 

MR. MITCHELL: All ri~ht. 

(Whereu~on the hearing was in recesa 

from 11:10 a.m. until 11:25 a.m. when the 

followin~ occurred,) 

THE MASTER: All ri~ht, I believe I 

will recess until 8:~0 Monday, December the ls . 

Will you n~ that i.n the record, ~lease. 

At that time the cross-examination of 

Mr. CouHng by Mr. Mitchell wHl began and 

then if you have any further wltnessea you 

wtll ~ut them on and rest and then the 

Res~ondent's esse will be~an. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Judge. 
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(Whereu~on the he•r!ng was in reeess 

1955 t. 
from 11:10 a.m. on November 22, 1975, until 

R:30 a.m. on Deeember 1, 1975.) 

,· /~ li 
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